%

\ 8
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Vs

Notice of meeting of
Executive Members for City Strategy and Advisory Panel
To: Councillors Gillies (Chair), Steve Galloway (Executive

Member), D'Agorne (Vice-Chair), Cregan, Hyman, Potter,
Scott and Waller (Executive Member)

Date: Monday, 20 October 2008

Time: 5.00 pm

Venue: The Guildhall, York
AGENDA

Notice to Members - Calling In:

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item on this
agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by:

10:00 am on Friday 17 October 2008, if an item is called in before a
decision is taken, or

4:00 pm on Wednesday 22 October 2008, if an item is called in after a
decision has been taken.

ltems called in will be considered by the Scrutiny Management
Committee.

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this agenda.
2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 20)

To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the
Executive Members for City Strategy and Advisory Panel held on 8
September 2008.

YORKPRIDE www.york.gov.uk



Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or
an issue within the Panel’s remit can do so. Anyone who wishes to
register or requires further information is requested to contact the
Democracy Officer on the contact details listed at the foot of this
agenda. The deadline for registering is Friday 17 October 2008 at
5.00 pm.

BUSINESS FOR THE EXECUTIVE MEMBER FOR CITY
STRATEGY

ITEMS FOR DECISION

Blossom Street Multi Modal Study - Feasibility (Pages 21 - 58)

This report presents the results of the first stage of the Blossom
Street Multi Modal Study. The study was commissioned to
investigate options for improving the Blossom Street/Queen
Street/Micklegate and Nunnery Lane junctions together with the
enhancement of the streetscape of Blossom Street between this
junction and its junction with Holgate Road.

Members are asked to receive a report at a future meeting
describing potential options detailing how they would satisfy the key
requirements.

James Street Link Road Phase 2 - Stage 1 Traffic Forecast
Refresh (Pages 59 - 70)

This report presents the output of traffic modelling recently
undertaken, to refresh the modelling previously undertaken as part
of the Foss Basin Transport Implications report, in order to confirm
the need for James Street Link Road Phase 2 and determine the
optimum time for the construction of the short remaining eastern
section.

Members are asked to await the outcome of negotiations with the
developer prior to receiving a further report on the financial and
legal implications.



Petition received from Residents Requesting the Provision of
Formal Cycle Facilities on Crichton Avenue (Pages 71 - 78)

This report advises Members of the receipt of a petition from
residents requesting that formal cycling facilities be provided on
Crichton Avenue and the actions that are currently underway to
investigate the provision of such facilities.

Water End - Proposed Improvements for Cyclists (Pages 79 -
94)

This report advises Members of the results of consultation
undertaken on proposals to introduce cycle facilities on Water End
from Clifton Green traffic signals to the junction of Salisbury Road.

Members are asked to approve the implementation of cycling
improvements as detailed in option one of the report.

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under
the Local Government Act 1972

Democracy Officer

Name: Jill Pickering
Contact Details:

Tel - (01904) 552061
Email - jill.pickering@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Contact details are set out above.

Registering to speak
Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements
Copies of reports




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Annex

About City of York Council Meetings

Would you like to speak at this meeting?
If you would, you will need to:

e register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00
pm on the last working day before the meeting;

e ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this);

e find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer.

A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088

Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting

All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing
online on the Council’s website. Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the
full agenda are available from Democratic Services. Contact the Democracy
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the
agenda requested to cover administration costs.

Access Arrangements

We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you. The meeting
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing
loop. We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape. Some formats will take
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours
for Braille or audio tape).

If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign
language interpreter then please let us know. Contact the Democracy Officer
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the
meeting.

Every effort will also be made to make information available in another
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing
sufficient advance notice is given. Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this
service.

T TCA STt (AT ST T SR I CFT TS ST W B F LG0T 6 T A, AT T HER

0T S T A (PR ZE S SRS (ST TR TR 29 | BRTE e (01904) 551 550 |

Yeteri kadar dnceden haber verilmesi kosuluyla, bilgilerin teriimesini hazirlatmalk ya da
bir terciiman bulmalk icin mimkin olan hersey vapilacaktir. Tel: (01904) 551 550

RS DERMIEAFEE TN RES A  £E 7 R ERITEMA BN T S ZHEE
=EIOERAS. |ES (01904) 551 550,

(01904) 551 550u}Lf-iufffdxgd/L)iu.ﬁfﬁ/uLer‘fq_d‘@ $re e sh b Sl

Informacja mozie byé dostepna w ttumaczeniu, jesli dostaniemy zapotrzebowanie z
wystarczajacym wyprzedzeniem. Tel: (01904) 551 550



Page 2

Holding the Executive to Account

The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a
published Executive (or Executive Member Advisory Panel (EMAP)) agenda.
The Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date
and will set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny
Management Committee (SMC). That SMC meeting will then make its
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.

Scrutiny Committees
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the
Council is to:
e Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services;
e Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as
necessary; and
e Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans

Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?
e Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to
which they are appointed by the Council;
e Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for
the committees which they report to;
e Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.



Page 3 Agenda ltem 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes

MEETING EXECUTIVE MEMBERS FOR CITY STRATEGY
AND ADVISORY PANEL

DATE 8 SEPTEMBER 2008

PRESENT COUNCILLORS GILLIES (CHAIR),

STEVE GALLOWAY (EXECUTIVE MEMBER),
D'AGORNE (VICE-CHAIR), HYMAN, POTTER,
SCOTT, WALLER (EXECUTIVE MEMBER) AND
CRISP (SUB FOR CLLR CREGAN)

APOLOGIES COUNCILLOR CREGAN

31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda.

Councillor Hyman declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda
item 4 (Loan to Science City York) as a member representative of Science
City York.

The Head of Civic, Democratic and Legal Services advised Members that
they were not required to declare a prejudicial interest only a personal
interest in relation to agenda item 5 (Chief Executive’s Monitor 1 Financial
and Performance Report 2008/09) regarding the Members superannuation
scheme as they had been given a dispensation in this respect.

Councillor Potter declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda
item 5 (Chief Executive’s Monitor 1 Financial and Performance Report
2008/09) in relation to the request for a supplementary estimate of £20k to
allow Members access to the superannuation scheme.

Councillor Crisp declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda
item 5 (Chief Executive’s Monitor 1 Financial and Performance Report
2008/09) in relation to the request for a supplementary estimate of £20k to
allow Members access to the superannuation scheme.

Councillor Waller declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda
item 5 (Chief Executive’s Monitor 1 Financial and Performance Report
2008/09) in relation to the request for a supplementary estimate of £20k to
allow Members access to the superannuation scheme.

Councillor D’Agorne declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda
item 5 (Chief Executive’s Monitor 1 Financial and Performance Report
2008/09) in relation to the request for a supplementary estimate of £20k to
allow Members access to the superannuation scheme. He also declared a
personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda items 7 and 9 (Manor School —
Highway Improvements) and (York Cycling City) as a member of the Cycle
Touring Club (CTC) and the York Cycle Campaign. Also in agenda item 15



32.

33.

Page 4

(Quality Bus Partnership Progress Report) as he had requested the update
report.

Councillor Gillies declared a personal non-prejudicial interest in agenda
item 8 (Coach Strategy Review) as a Director of Visit York.

MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the last meeting of the Panel held
on 14 July 2008 be approved and signed by the Chair
and the Executive Members as a correct record.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

It was reported that there had been six registrations to speak at the
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

Mr Hall spoke regarding agenda item 7 (Manor School — Highway
Improvements). He referred to his email, circulated at the meeting, which
thanked both Members and Officers for taking on board resident’s
comments and amending the proposals for the junction at Beckfield
Lane/A59. He stated however that he felt that many residents concerns
over proposals for the Beckfield Lane cycle path had not been taken into
account as the scheme had been extended to the Ostman Road junction
without informing those concerned. He referred to his personal experience
of problems with cycle paths and confirmed that he wished to make the
cycle path safe for all. He went on to state that it could not be automatically
assumed that an off road path would be more appropriate and that he felt
that this would not be practical and could lead to more accidents.

Mr Crookes spoke regarding agenda item 7 (Manor School — Highway
Improvements) as a resident of Beckfield Lane, adjacent to where the
cycle path was proposed. He confirmed that he supported the junction
proposals to assist cyclists in crossing Boroughbridge Road but that he
had major concerns regarding the proposed cycle path. These concerns
included sight lines from adjacent drives, current off road parking which
would transfer to Beckfield Lane, the speed of cyclists and future problems
that could arise for those with visual impairment or disabilities.

Mr Pagliaro spoke regarding agenda item 7 (Manor School — Highway
Improvements) and he presented the views of a Manor School pupil, a
motorist involved in a collision at the Beckfield Lane/A59 junction, from the
York Access Group and from his personal experience as a cyclist. He fully
supported the proposals for an off road cycle path to provide a safe access
to the new school.

Councillor Horton spoke, as Local Member, regarding agenda item 7
(Manor School — Highway Improvements) he thanked the Officers for their
work on this complex scheme. He stated however that he still had some
concerns in relation to certain parts of the proposed scheme. His main
concerns related to the signalised junction with the filter phase for cyclists



34.

Page 5

and vehicles, the creation of rat runs on Wheatlands Grove and Lygett
Grove and access problems for 200-206 Boroughbridge Road. He raised
further concerns regarding the cycle lane proposed on Low Poppleton
Lane and Beckfield Lane and the need for the provision of new signs to
warn drivers that Low Poppleton Lane was a no through road with no
access to the industrial estate on Millfield Lane. He stated that police
accident statistics were required to support the proposals.

Councillor Simpson-Laing spoke, as Local Member, regarding agenda item
7 (Manor School — Highway Improvements). She referred to her written
submission, which had been circulated at the meeting. She also confirmed
the need for signage to prevent vehicles entering Low Poppleton Lane and
to possible future drainage problems that could arise for properties on this
lane. Again her main concern related to the proposals for the cycle path on
Beckfield Lane and the lack of consultation with residents. She
recommended Members to support the proposals in Annex M of the report.

Councillor Vassie spoke, as the Councils Energy Champion, regarding
agenda item 11 (Results from the Street Lighting Trials). He requested
Members to support the positive results of the street lighting trials by
agreeing a plan of action to implement similar schemes on the inner ring
road, at the Park and Ride sites, on non-residential roads (eg Malton
Road) and at Crockey Hill and similar road junctions. He stated that the
trials had a high level of support including the Safer York Partnership and
that these schemes would have a major impact on reducing energy levels.

LOAN TO SCIENCE CITY YORK

Consideration was given to a report which sought approval to make a loan
of £50,000 to Science City York Company Limited by guarantee (CLG) to
assist with its cash flow whilst drawing down on external funding.

Members were reminded that Science City York was jointly owned by the
City of York Council and York University and that they were responsible for
delivering contacts for business support from Yorkshire Forward. Following
results of a cash flow forecast the company had requested the loan to
ensure that they were in a firm financial position to deal with cash flow
arising from delays in payment of grant claims from Yorkshire Forward. It
was reported that the University of York had already agreed their loan to
the company.

It was reported that Officers had worked with the CLG to prepare their cash
flow forecasts and that the option of not approving a loan would create
significant risk to the cash flow of the CLG at a time when it was seeking
further external funding from European Regional Development Funds and
Yorkshire Forward.

Members questioned the level of the interest rate proposed on the loan
and details of the call in period.



35.

Page 6

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Leader be advised to recommend that the
Executive approve a loan of £50,000 from the Council to the
Science City York Company Limited by guarantee to assist with
its cash flow. "

Decision of the Executive Leader

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
endorsed.

REASON: To support the development of Science City York and the
contribution it makes to the City and the Council’s
strategic  objectives. The loan will enable the
establishment of Science City York as a company limited
by guarantee to proceed on a firm financial basis and fulfil
contractual requirements to Yorkshire Forward.

Action Required
1. Reference report from the City Strategy EMAP to the
Executive recommending the approval of the loan. GR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S MONITOR 1 FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE
REPORT 2008/09

Members considered the performance and financial information for the
Chief Executive’s Directorate for the 2008/09 Monitor 1. The performance
element covered key and Council Plan indicators and projects, and the
financial aspect dealt with performance against budget for the Chief
Executive’s Directorate.

The latest budget for the Directorate totalled £4,873k and current
projections showed that the Directorate would overspend by £105k, which
equated to 0.95% of the gross expenditure budget. Included in the
overspend was a projected cost of £20k in allowing Members access to the
superannuation scheme and it was recommended that a request was
made to the Executive to fund this pressure.

Members questioned the following points:

e Details of the new occupational health contact and proposed
management training;

e Paragraph 38: Scrutiny structures project review — when
would further consultation take place with Groups? (Officers
to reply by email); ™

e Paragraph 40: Ongoing work to respond to the Act — when
would Members be consulted? (Officers to reply by email); *

e Single Improvement Plan — further details requested in
particular how and when Members would be updated on the
Plan (Officers to reply by email);



36.

Page 7

e In which Directorates was good progress being made,
paragraph 46 refers (Officers to reply by email); *

o BVPI 12: Number of staff days lost to sickness (and stress)
across the Council — 08/09 target;

Following further discussion

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Leader be advised to

(i) Note the financial and performance position of the portfolio;

(i) Recommend to the Executive to release a contingency sum
of £20k to fund the additional cost of Members
superannuation costs. >

Decision of the Executive Leader

RESOLVED:  That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
endorsed.

REASON: In accordance with budgetary and performance
monitoring procedures.

Action Required

1. Information to be emailed to Members; GR
2. Information to be emailed to Members; GR
3. Information to be emailed to Members; GR
4. Information to be emailed to Members; GR
5. To refer to the Executive for approval as part of the

Corporate Finance and Performance Monitoring Report. GR

2008/09 FIRST MONITORING REPORT FOR ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT SERVICE - FINANCE & PERFORMANCE

Members considered the latest projections for revenue and capital
expenditure by Economic Development, as well as performance against
target for;
e National Performance Indicators
e Customer First Targets (letter and telephone answering)
e Staff Management targets (sickness absence and appraisals
completed).

The Panel were reminded that the Best Value Performance Indicators
(BVPIs) had now been superseded by a new indicator, the National
Performance Indicators (NPIs) of which Economic Development now had
14, the majority of which were annual.

The current approved budget was £2,345k, including £15k which had been
carried forward from 2007/08 and a further £20k to reduce the market



37.

Page 8

income expectation. Current projections showed that the Economic
Development outturn would be £2,368k, an overspend of £+23k.

Members referred to the reference, in paragraph 24 of the report, that only
15 businesses had committed to moving into the York Eco Business
Centre from early September (25% of the buildings capacity). Officers
confirmed that marketing was being undertaken and that the business plan
for the Centre showed occupancy rates for Years 1/2 which they were
confident could be met.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Leader be advised to approve the financial and
performance position of the Economic Development portfolio.

Decision of the Executive Leader

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
endorsed.

REASON: In accordance with budgetary and performance
monitoring procedures.

MANOR SCHOOL - HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENTS (INCLUDING
BECKFIELD LANE CYCLE SCHEME)

Consideration was given to a report, which summarised the outcome of
consultation on a package of highway improvements aimed at providing
safe and sustainable transport links to the new Manor School located on
Millfield Lane.

The package included elements that the school was required to provide as
planning conditions, plus other complementary proposals, which would be
funded via the Council’'s Local Transport Plan. Issues arising through the
consultation were detailed, and possible amendments to the proposals
were considered. Options for providing cycle facilities along Beckfield Lane
were also discussed. Approval of a scheme for implementation was
sought, along with authorisation to advertise some related traffic regulation
orders.

Officers updated that additional representations, both in support and in
objection, to the amendments proposed to the scheme had been received
from the following, copies of which were circulated at the meeting:

e Letter from ClIr Simpson-Laing detailing the strong concerns
of local residents on the proposed revisions to the scheme,
particularly in relation to the ‘off road cycle lane’ on Beckfield
Lane;

e Email from Mr A Hall of Beckfield Lane, advising Officers of
residents continued concerns over the proposals for a cycle
path on Beckfield Lane;

e Five emails, mainly from Governors of Manor School,
supporting the safer route for cyclists and highway
improvements proposed by Officers for the new school;



Page 9

o Written report representing the personal views of Mr Pagliaro
as a cyclist, of his grand daughter who attended Manor
school, his daughter who had been involved in an accident at
the junction of Beckfield Lane/A59 and from York Access
Group;

e Letter from Mr J Doherty, a member of the York Access
Group fully supporting the proposals.

A number of Members referred to the continued concerns raised by
residents in relation to the cycle lane proposals for Beckfield Lane. They
questioned whether this aspect of the scheme could be deferred to allow
further consultation and an examination of how the cycle way could be
better integrated into the cycle network.

Members also stated that parents driving children to school would tend to
leave them in Low Poppleton Lane requiring vehicles to complete a turning
manoeuvre in the vicinity of the rising bollard raising safety concerns.
Some Members felt that a complete review was required of priorities on
Beckfield Lane with cyclists requiring greater priority.

Following further discussion ClIr Potter moved and CliIr Scott seconded the
following amended recommendation:

(i) Approve the following as the preferred package of
measures for implementation, subject to resolution of
any Traffic Regulation Order issues and possible minor
amendments required by further detailed design and
the road safety audit process:

e the alternative School Safety Zone layout on
Millfield Lane shown in Annex H of the report;

e the arrangements around the Millfield Lane
/Low Poppleton Lane junction shown in Annex
D of the report;

e the scheme layout shown in Annex E, including
the revision shown in Annex | of the report;

e the revised layout of the Boroughbridge Road/
Low Poppleton Lane / Beckfield Lane junction
shown in Annex M of the report;

e the proposals for Beckfield Lane shown in
Annex M of the report;

e the relocation of the bus stop on Boroughbridge
Road as shown in Annex L of the report.

(i) Authorise the advertisement of any Road Traffic Regulation
Orders associated with the preferred highway improvement
scheme and, subject to no objections being received, the
Orders be made. Any unresolved objections to be referred to
the Director of City Strategy to consider in consultation with
the Executive Member for City Strategy.

(iii)  To approve, in principle, a long term aim of introducing off-road
cycle paths along either side of Beckfield Lane where



Page 10

practical, and agree to the development of detailed proposals
for providing a path on the east side of the street extending as
far south as Ostman Road as the priority for 2008/09.

Officers to further examine the feasibility of introducing a
20mph speed limit on Beckfield Lane and undertake further
consultation with residents in respect of the proposals for
on/off road cycle paths on Beckfield Lane.

On being put to the vote the amended recommendation was lost.

Members agreed that improved signage to prevent vehicles accessing Low
Poppleton Lane would be necessary together with any drainage mitigation
measures required to prevent additional water run off arising from the
highway works to adjacent properties on Low Poppleton Lane.

Members again thanked Officers for all their hard work on this complex

scheme.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to

(i)

(i)

Approve the following as the preferred package of measures
for implementation, subject to resolution of any Traffic
Regulation Order issues and possible minor amendments
required by further detailed design and the road safety audit
process:

e the alternative School Safety Zone layout on Millfield
Lane shown in Annex H of the report;

e the arrangements around the Millfield Lane /Low
Poppleton Lane junction shown in Annex D of the
report;

e the scheme layout shown in Annex E, including the
revision shown in Annex | of the report;

e the revised layout of the Boroughbridge Road/ Low
Poppleton Lane / Beckfield Lane junction shown in
Annex M of the report;

e the proposals for Beckfield Lane shown in Annex G of
the report;

e the relocation of the bus stop on Boroughbridge Road
as shown in Annex L of the report. ™

Authorise the advertisement of any Road Traffic Regulation
Orders associated with the preferred highway improvement
scheme and, subject to no objections being received, the
Orders be made. Any unresolved objections to be referred to
the Director of City Strategy to consider in consultation with
the Executive Member for City Strategy. *

To approve, in principle, a long term aim of introducing off-road
cycle paths along either side of Beckfield Lane where



38.

Page 11

practical, and agree to the development of detailed proposals
for providing a path on the east side of the street extending as
far south as Ostman Road as the priority for 2008/09. *

Decision of the Executive Member for City Strateqy

RESOLVED:  That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
endorsed.

REASON: (i) To provide safe and sustainable transport links to the
new Manor School, deliver the required highway
improvements as conditioned within the planning
approval, and to respond to issues and concerns
raised through consultation on the detailed scheme
plans.

(i) To enable any necessary restrictions on parking, use
of any section of carriageway or footway, and changes
to speed limits to be introduced.

(i)  To provide officers with direction on how to progress
the Beckfield Lane Cycle Route scheme, and make
best use of the funding currently available to take this
forward.

Action Required

1. Implement the highway improvements listed in the report
subject to resolution of any Traffic Regulation Order issues;  SL
2. Advertise any necessary Road Traffic Regulation Orders

and subject to no objections being received the Orders be

made; SL
3. To note that agreement in principal has been given to the

long term aim of introducing off-road cycle paths along either

side of Beckfield Lane. SL

COACH STRATEGY REVIEW

Members considered a report, which provided a description and analysis of
key findings arising from the York Coach Strategy Update (2008). This
study had been commissioned to update the information gathered in a
previous 2003 report, in order to provide current information with regard to
implementing the city’s coach strategy.

The report had highlighted a number of issues two of which were that
drivers had a preference for a central coach park together with improved
coach facilities. Other findings discussed were the retention of St George’s
Field as a coach park in the short to medium term and the need for a
detailed examination as to the feasibility of coaches using the bus lanes in
York.

Members expressed some concerns regarding:

e Desirability of coach parking in the centre of York and the possibility of
moving this to the Park and Ride sites;

e Use of bus lanes by coaches and the potential impact on traffic;



Page 12

e The issue of indiscrimination parking of coaches on Knavesmire Road;

e That there was still a need for facilities for coach drivers;

e Affect on existing Park and Ride users if coach parking moved to Park
and Ride sites;

e Needf

or clear ‘signing’ of a safe walking route from St Georges Field

car park to the city centre.

Consideration was then given to the following options:
To retain St George’s Field in the short to medium term as a coach-parking
site so that use can be monitored in order to establish whether the site is a

suitable lo

ng-term option.

Use St George’s Field as a temporary coach park with a view to relocating
coach parking in the medium term, primarily to Park and Ride sites as

these are

the recommended option in the study.

Progress work on examining the feasibility of allowing coaches to use bus

lanes.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to

(i)

Approve Option A to allow coach parking to remain at St
George’s Field in the short term but note that there are
advantages in coaches parking away from the City centre, as far
as possible, in the future; ™

Approve Option C for Officers to investigate the feasibility of the
use of bus lanes by coaches but stress that any proposed
changes must guarantee no worsening of stage carriage and
park and ride bus performance;?*

That the possibility of introducing restrictions on coaches parking
free of charge on roads such as Knavesmire Road be
investigated; >

(iv) That the City has no objections in principle to coaches using Park

Decision

and Ride sites with their passengers using these bus service
links to access the City centre. Instructs officers to survey local
businesses like the Designer Outlet Centre for their views on
this option while also bearing in mind this possible demand
when designing the 3 new park and ride sites scheduled to be
constructed in the City. *

of the Executive Member for City Strateqy

RESOLVED:  That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and

REASON:

endorsed.

(i) To allow York to offer quality facilities suited best to the
visitor demographic that will enable the city to strongly
compete with other destinations for coach trade.



39.

Page 13

(ii) (iii) (iv) To enable Officers to carry out feasibility
assessment of allowing coaches to use the bus lanes,
restrictions on coach parking and survey local business
on their views on coach parking.

Action Required

1. Note that coach parking can remain on St George's Field

in the short term; SL
2. To investigate the feasibility of coaches using bus lanes;  SL
3. Investigate the possibility of introducing restrictions on

coaches parking on roads such as Knavesmire Road; SL
4. Survey to be undertaken of local businesses for their
views on coaches using Park and Ride sites. SL

YORK CYCLING CITY

Consideration was given to a report, which advised Members of progress
in developing the York City Cycle project, since the announcement of the
successful bid in June 2008. The report highlighted the key points of the
bid, the proposed governance structure for delivering the project and set
out the next actions to be implemented in moving the project forward. Also
included was an update on progress towards the cycling target and actions
to help meet it that had been put in place during the last two years.

Officers updated that a questionnaire aimed at non-cyclists to obtain their
views on the reasons why they no longer cycled or had never cycled would
be available on the Councils website from tomorrow. Members were
informed of the successful all day visit made by representatives of Cycling
England on Thursday 21 August for discussions and site visits with
officers, stakeholders and Members.

Members commented on the following points:

e Concern at the very ambitious targets proposed and the need to
improve existing cycling facilities in conjunction with involving new
cyclists;

e Emphasis required on younger cyclists and schools;

e Need to work with the Police and Bike Rescue in an effort to assist
those who had insufficient money to purchase a bike;

e When addressing gaps in provision with investment there was a
need to do this in conjunction with cycle uptake;

e Gaps in provision on the inner ring road around the Foss Basin
area;

e Had an advert been placed for the critical role of a Project Manager
for the project delivery? Officers confirmed that a temporary
appointment was to be made pending the results of pay and
grading;

e Confirmation that the proposed bridge was now a part of the York
Central development and that its exclusion from this project would
not affect funding;

e Membership of the Strategy Management Group and dates of
appointment.



40.

Page 14

Members welcomed the report and the ambitious projects proposed for
York as a cycling city.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to

(i) Note this report and the progress made to date on the cycling
city project and the cycling target and;

(i) Endorse the next steps to the further development of the
cycling city project as set out in paragraphs 18 to 22 of the
report. "

Decision of the Executive Member for City Strateqy

RESOLVED:  That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
endorsed.

REASON: To enable progress to continue and ensure delivery of all
the elements of the project.

Action Required
1. Endorse the actions proposed in paragraphs 18 to 22 of
the report for further development of the project. SL

WINTER MAINTENANCE SERVICE 2008/09

Consideration was given to this report which advised Members of the
outcome of a review of last seasons Winter Maintenance Service and
sought approval of Officers actions in renewing the winter maintenance
forecast provision contract.

It was reported that the previous year had had an average winter with no
requirement to open the emergency control room. There had been very
little snowfall which had resulted in only 67 treatments being carried out on
the road network (70 being the average) and 9 treatments of the footway
network.

Officers also reported that the contract for the provision of winter
maintenance forecast information had been re-tendered for a further 5
years and that the service provider would be known by the end of August.

With reference to paragraph 5, one of the Local Members for the
Fishergate Ward, requested the addition of the Millennium Bridge as part
of the footway network for treatment in the future.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to note the report
and approve the action to seek renewal of the winter maintenance forecast
contract as set out in paragraph 9 of the report. "



41.

Page 15

Decision of the Executive Member for City Strateqy

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
endorsed.

REASON: To ensure that the current winter maintenance policy is
robust whilst ensuring the budget is expended in the most
cost effective way based on the Council’'s assessed
priorities.

Action Required
1. Agreement to re-tendering of the winter maintenance
forecast contract. SL

RESULTS FROM THE STREET LIGHTING TRIALS

Members considered a report, which examined the results of street lighting
trials, which had taken place earlier in the year. Trials had taken place in
Museum Street and Rawcliffe Bar Park and Ride site. The results had
shown that overall the vast majority of people taking part in the trials did
not notice any perceived difference in the various levels of lighting and that
there had been no increase in crime as a result. The report examined how
this matter could be progressed, in line with the recommendations of the
Executive.

Members were reminded that the trials had only been carried out on a
small scale and that these results could not simply be extended to the
larger scale situation. The positive outcome however suggested that there
was scope to consider some further use of variable lighting levels in line
with the Executive recommendations in the sustainable street lighting
strategy of 23 October 2007.

Members expressed their support for the implementation of optimised
lighting schemes in suitable areas. They requested Officers to draw up
plans for different types of schemes and report back to EMAP in January
2009, prior to the budgets being set.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to request further
reports by January 2009 in support of specific variable lighting schemes
that meet the criteria set out by the Executive. "

(Officers informed Members that these further reports would be presented
to the Neighbourhood Services Advisory Panel meeting in January 2009.)

Decision of the Executive Member for City Strateqy

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
endorsed.



42.

Page 16

REASON: To deliver the appropriate levels of lighting to support
communities using the least amount of energy.

Action Required

1. Reports on specific variable street lighting schemes to be
present to the Neighbourhood Services EMAP meeting in
January 20009. SL

2008/09 CITY STRATEGY FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE MONITOR
ONE

Consideration was given to a report, which presented two sets of data from
the City Strategy directorate:
a. the latest projections for revenue expenditure and capital
expenditure for City Strategy portfolio,
b. Monitor 1 (2008/09) performance against target for a number
of key indicators that were made up of:
¢ National Performance Indicators and local indicators
owned by City Strategy
e Customer First targets (letter answering)
o Staff Management Targets (sickness absence)

Members expressed concerns regarding the following points:

e Paragraph 51 — contribution as part of the joint waste project with
North Yorkshire and the dividend from Yorwaste;

e Paragraphs 44 and 45 — problems with recruitment and the need to
employ agency staff;

e Performance Indicators (PI's) that there was a need to monitor
those that were underperforming.

Members then had the option to support the request for a supplementary
estimate from contingency or whether to require the Director of City
Strategy to deliver alternative savings.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to
(i) Note the financial and performance position of the portfolio;

(i) Recommend the Executive release a contingency sum of
£180k to support pressure on the Penalty Charge Notices
budget; "

(iii) Approve the one off virement of £155k between the Waste
Procurement budget and Yorwaste dividend income.

Decision of the Executive Member for City Strateqy

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
endorsed.



43.

Page 17

REASON: In accordance with budgetary and performance
monitoring procedures.

Action Required

1. To refer to the Executive for approval as part of the

Corporate Finance and Performance Monitoring Report; SL
2. To adjust the budget on the ledger. SL

2008/09 CITY STRATEGY CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITOR 1
REPORT

Consideration was given to a report which set out progress to date on
schemes in the City Strategy Capital Programme for 2008/09. It detailed
budget spend to the end of July 2008 and also gave an update on any
scheme works that had occurred since the end of July to give a more
accurate picture of progress and any adjustments that needed to be made.

It was reported that the current approved budget for the City Strategy
Capital Programme for 2008/09 was £8,439k and the current approved
programme had a value of £9,405k, which included £966k of
overprogramming. Most of the schemes in the capital programme were on
schedule to achieve their programme of works and spend by the end of the
financial year.

Members were presented with a number of amendments to the capital
programme for approval, which were required to ensure that the schemes
were deliverable within funding constraints whilst enabling the objectives of
the approved Local Transport Plan to be met.

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to

(i) Approve the adjustments to budgets as set out in Annexes 1
and 2 of the report; "

(i) Note the pressures on the Capital Programme budget in
future years identified in paragraphs 10 to 14 of the report.

Decision of the Executive Member for City Strateqy

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
endorsed.

REASON: To manage the Capital Programme effectively.

Action Required
1. To update the programme spreadsheets. SL




44,

45.

Page 18

A COMPARISON OF BUS FARES IN YORK WITH OTHER LOCAL
AUTHORITIES

Consideration was given to a report, which advised Members of the
comparative costs of bus travel in response to a request made for this
information at the meeting of the Panel in July 2007.

The report examined the following areas:
e How local bus service fares in York compared to those in
other, broadly similar conurbations.

e How Park & Ride fares in York compared to those in other
local authorities.

e How fares differed between the bus companies operating in
(and into) York.

Members were reminded that they had little control over fares levels on
commercial bus services although fares in York were not excessive when
compared to other areas of the country.

Members thanked Officers for the report and requested that a Forward
Plan for City Strategy was in future circulated with the agenda. ™

Advice of the Advisory Panel

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to continue to
support Officers in their work with bus operators to further improve the
quality and retain the existing fares on bus services in York.

Decision of the Executive Member for City Strateqy

RESOLVED: That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
endorsed.

REASON: To continue to monitor local bus service and Park and
Ride fares against other comparable Local Authorities.

Action Required
1. Circulation of City Strategy Forward Plan with future
agenda papers. SL

QUALITY BUS PARTNERSHIP PROGRESS REPORT

Consideration was given to a report, which set out details of the decisions
made by the Quality Bus Partnership (QBP) since its relaunch in August
2007. It was reported that the Partnership had undergone a transformation
with the creation of ‘working groups’ operating alongside the main QBP.
The groups had been tasked with examining specific issues designed to
improve the quality of bus services in York.

Advice of the Advisory Panel




Page 19

That the Executive Member for City Strategy be advised to note the
contents of the report.

Decision of the Executive Member for City Strateqy

RESOLVED:  That the advice of the Advisory Panel be accepted and
endorsed.

REASON: In order to be informed on the progress of the Quality Bus
Partnership in the past year.

CllIr Gillies, Chair

Clir Waller, Executive Leader

Clir S F Galloway, Executive Member for City Strategy

[The meeting started at 5.00 pm and finished at 7.45 pm].



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 21 Agenda ltem 4

YORK

QJ"‘;Q" CITY OF
b’ COUNCIL

Meeting of Executive Members for 20 October 2008
City Strategy and Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Blossom Street Multi Modal Study - Feasibility

Summary

1. This report presents the results of the first stage of the Blossom Street
Multi Modal Study. This study was commissioned to investigate options
for improving the Blossom Street / Queen Street / Micklegate / Nunnery
Lane junction and enhancing the streetscape of Blossom Street between
this junction and its junction with Holgate Road, with the aim of
improving accessibility and safety for all road users, particularly
pedestrians and cyclists. The study also had to consider the
requirements of the city’s Air Quality Management Plan

2. This report also presents the key requirements that any scheme
option(s) will need to satisfy.

3. The report recommends that Members receive a report at a future EMAP
describing potential options and how they satisfy, as far as is practicable,
the key requirements.

Background

4. Blossom Street is one of the major gateways into the main part of the
city centre. It carries large volumes of traffic and cycles as well as being
a prominent walking route to the city centre.

5. The current layout of Blossom Street and the junctions at either end is
shown at Annex A.

6. There are six schools in the vicinity of the study area; these being All
Saints RC Secondary School (Upper and Lower); Scarcroft Primary
School; Millthorpe Secondary School and The Mount and Tregelles
independent Schools. Blossom Street has been identified as a potential
danger area for pupils going to and from school in several Safe Routes
to Schools reports, specifically All Saints RC School, Millthorpe School
and Scarcroft School. In addition to these reports, accident statistics
show that over the five year period May 2003 to April 2008 there were
several ‘accident clusters’ with 22 pedestrians and 9 cyclists involved in



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 22

accidents. Many of the pedestrian accidents occurred away from
controlled pedestrian crossing points.

In recent years bus operators have experienced problems with turning
left from Blossom Street into Queen Street, particularly using articulated
vehicles, and in many cases have to use the Blossom Street inbound
central approach lane in get into position to perform this turn. This is
especially dangerous as cyclists travelling on the nearside lane (i.e. up
the inside of the bus) frequently get cut-up as the vehicle rounds the
corner. The Tadcaster Road / Mount Vale / The Mount / Blossom Street
corridor also acts as a major route into York City Centre for many heavy
goods vehicles travelling from the south, and a similar situation occurs
when heavy goods vehicles perform the same left turn manoeuvre.

Blossom Street is also one of the principal routes for race-goers
travelling to and from the city centre. Consequently, there are high flows
of pedestrians, buses and taxis on race days.

A real time air quality monitoring station is located at The Mount/
Blossom Street junction as the area is with the York Air Quality
Management Area (AQMA).

In May 2008 Halcrow was commissioned to undertake a study to
ascertain the options for altering the Blossom Street / Queen Street /
Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction and enhancing the streetscape of
Blossom Street between this junction and its junction with Holgate Road
to improve the accessibility and safety for all road users, particularly
pedestrians and cyclists. The study consists of several stages. The first
stage is to establish the issues and devise the key requirements that any
proposed option(s) would need to satisfy.

The study and its findings
Assessment of the current situation
Accidents

During the five-year period, between May 2003 and April 2008, forty-
eight accidents were recorded. Three of these were serious and the
remainder were slight. Further analysis shows that there were 22
pedestrians and nine cyclists involved in these.

A cluster of 15 slight accidents occurred at the Blossom Street / Queen
Street / Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction. Four of these involved
cyclists and six involved pedestrians. Two of the cyclist accidents were
caused by cyclists turning right from Queen Street to Blossom Street
colliding with vehicles travelling straight ahead from Queen Street to
Nunnery Lane. Two of the pedestrian accidents involved vehicles
mounting the pavement at the corner of the Nunnery Lane approach to
the junction and colliding with a pedestrian.

Another cluster of 11 accidents is located at the Holgate Road/Blossom
Street/The Mount junction. Two of these were ‘serious’; one involving a
pedestrian crossing on a ‘red-man’ and the other involving a cyclist.



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Page 23

On Blossom Street itself, 8 out of the 12 slight accidents recorded
involved pedestrians colliding with vehicles, indicating that pedestrians
are attempting to cross a busy road away from controlled pedestrian
crossing points.

Vehicle flows, turning movements and queues

Traffic surveys backed-up by on-site observations show that the study
area is heavily congested with the local network operating at or above
theoretical capacity at peak periods. For the purposes of this study it
was, therefore, assumed that no increase in peak traffic levels (above
2005 levels) would be possible.

The surveys show that inbound flows on Blossom Street are 1101
passenger car units (PCUs) in the AM peak and 941 PCUs in the PM
peak. The corresponding flows on Blossom Street outbound are 620
PCUs and 951 PCUs.

In both the AM and PM peak over 40% of the inbound traffic on Blossom
Street turns left into Queen Street, with just over 30% turning right into
Nunnery Lane and the remainder going straight ahead into Micklegate.
Over 75% of the traffic leaving Queen Street turns right into Blossom
Street in both peaks.

Outbound traffic on Blossom Street splits fairly evenly between The
Mount and Holgate Road in both peaks.

In the AM peak queuing on Blossom Street inbound extends to and
beyond the Blossom Street/Holgate Road Junction. In addition, queues
form on the other approaches to the Blossom Street / Queen Street /
Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction, but these clear during the allocated
traffic signal green times. A similar situation occurs in the PM peak, but
queues only extend on Blossom Street as far as the pedestrian crossing
outside the former Odeon cinema and queues on Nunnery Lane extend
back to its junction with St Benedict Road.

Cycle flows and turning movements

Although cycle flows are less than vehicle flows, they are still significant.
The surveys show that there are 253 cyclists on Blossom Street inbound
and 96 outbound in the AM peak and in the PM peak this is reversed
(albeit slightly fewer). Flows on Queen Street are 74 (AM peak) and 108
(PM peak) with flows on Nunnery Lane being much lower. Outbound
flow on Micklegate is highly tidal with 29 and 101 in the AM and PM
peaks respectively.

Although the number of cyclists heading out of Micklegate in the PM
peak is much higher than the AM peak, the maximum throughput of
cyclists may be hindered due to queuing traffic below Micklegate Bar
blocking the route for cyclists. In such circumstances the cyclists either
have to wait on the inside of the bar until the traffic clears, or dismount to
walk the cycle along the pavement under the adjacent eastern arch and
rejoin the carriageway outside the Bar (in some cases cyclist perform
this without dismounting).



22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

Page 24

In both the AM and PM peak approximately 90% of the inbound cyclists
on Blossom Street either turn left into Queen Street or continue straight
ahead into Micklegate (slightly more go straight ahead than turn left). A
similar percentage turn right out of Queen Street into Blossom Street in
both peaks. Outbound cycle traffic from Micklegate predominantly
continues straight ahead into Blossom Street. In both the AM and PM
peaks twice as many outbound cyclists on Blossom Street approaching
the Blossom Street/Holgate Road junction continue straight ahead
toward the Mount as those that turn right into Holgate Road.

Some facilities exist to ease cycle movements on Blossom Street and
the junctions at either end. These consist of:

. Sub-standard cycle lanes at the Queen Street and Nunnery Lane
approaches to the Blossom Street / Queen Street / Micklegate /
Nunnery Lane junction, and

. Advanced cycle stop lines on all approaches to the Street / Queen
Street / Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction, and the Blossom
Street Holgate Road / The Mount junction, with the exception of the
straight ahead lane outbound to the Mount at the latter.

Pedestrians

Pedestrian surveys undertaken in June 2008 showed that the Queen
Street controlled crossing is the most heavily used crossing facility in the
peak periods with approximately 520 pedestrians crossing. These
crossing movements were highly tidal, as four times as many people
crossed inbound to those outbound in the AM peak, with the reverse in
the PM peak. The surveys also revealed that a large number of
pedestrians crossed on the crossing’s ‘red-man’ phase. The Queen
Street crossing has a refuge, which contains a signal head, and this is
used by pedestrians to cross in two stages if deemed necessary.
Observations of some bus (and, to a lesser degree, heavy goods
vehicle) turning movements revealed that their front overhang frequently
over-ran this refuge (see also paragraph 31), potentially putting waiting
pedestrians at risk of injury.

The other controlled crossing points, with the exception of The Mount
crossing point, had pedestrian flows in the order of 150 to 250 in the
peaks. In addition to observed pedestrian movements at the controlled
crossing points approximately 60 pedestrian crossings were observed at
the Blossom Street approach to the Blossom Street / Queen Street /
Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction, utilising the central refuge (where a
traffic signal head is located) to cross in two stages if deemed
necessary. In the AM peak many of these pedestrians were observed to
be schoolchildren that had disembarked a school bus at a bus stop on
Queen Street.

In the school peak hour (15:00 hrs to 16:00 hrs) the pedestrian flows on
Queens Street and Nunnery Lane are more even at approximately 350
on each. However, the predominant direction of travel on each is
different, with slightly more outbound than inbound on Queen Street,
whereas more people cross outbound than inbound on Nunnery Lane. In



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Page 25

addition, slightly more pedestrians were observed crossing at the top of
Blossom Street.

Crossings at The Mount controlled crossing were much lower than other
crossings at fewer than 50. In addition a small number of pedestrians
were observed crossing at The Crescent adjacent to a Sainsbury’s Local
store, indicating that the existing controlled crossings are not capturing
all pedestrian desire lines in this location.

Bus services, stops and turning movements

Analysis of bus service timetables shows Blossom Street carries 33
inbound and 31 outbound bus services in the peak hours, with many of
these continuing to operate throughout the day. Two inbound bus stops
are located adjacent to each other on a common lay-by between the
Crescent and the former Odeon cinema, whereas the two outbound bus
stops are approximately 40 metres apart, with the northernmost of the
two outside the Bar Convent. Both outbound bus stops are within a
stretch of cobbles running along the eastern edge of Blossom Street.
The stop outside the Bar Convent is in a lay-by, whereas the other is on
a bus boarder build-out.

Analysis of bus timings showed that there are occasions where two
buses can arrive at the same time at each of the stops, with
(theoretically,) two buses turning up simultaneously at each of the
outbound stops once each hour. If this was to happen in actuality, the
layout of the stops would require some buses to wait while passenger’s
board or alight the buses that arrive first. At the northernmost outbound
stop this may cause other traffic to wait in the Blossom Street / Queen
Street / Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction until the first bus had cleared
the stop.

One of the services running along Blossom Street is the ftr (Service 4).
When the ftr is waiting at its inbound stop, other buses have to queue in
Blossom Street. At the outbound stop passengers alighting from the rear
door have to step off onto the loading bays below pavement level.

For the AM and PM peak there are approximately 50 inbound public
service vehicles (buses and coaches) along Blossom Street, 90% of
which turn left into Queen Street, to the railway station and city centre.
Conversely, a similar number of buses emerge from Queen Street and
turn right into Blossom Street. At the Holgate Road/ Blossom Street
junction the overall number of buses is slightly less at approximately 36
and 1.5 to 2.5 times as many continue straight ahead to The Mount as
turn right into Holgate Road.

On site observations revealed that ftr vehicles approach the Blossom
Street / Queen Street / Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction either wholly
or partly in the middle lane of the Blossom Street approach to turn left
into Queen Street. Even when doing this to achieve the left turn, the ftr,
other articulated buses and some heavy goods vehicles encroach onto
the footway and overhang the refuge on Queen Street. This causes
concern with regard to the potential for collision with cyclists in the left
lane of the Blossom Street approach and pedestrians on either the south



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Page 26

side of Queen Street or the central refuge, particularly in view of the
large pedestrian movements here.

Parking and servicing

Waiting is restricted on Blossom Street, Queen Street, Micklegate,
Nunnery Lane, The Mount and Holgate Road. Parking is limited to one 1
hour maximum stay parking space adjacent to the southernmost
outbound bus stop and on street pay and display parking (up to 2 hours
maximum) in The Crescent. Loading restrictions also apply Monday to
Saturday between 08:00 hrs and 09:15 hrs and between 16:00 hrs to
18:00 hrs. In addition, there are ‘no stopping except buses 7am-7pm’
signs at the four bus stops on Blossom Street.

Businesses on Blossom Street receive deliveries outside of the restricted
hours, with vehicles unloading at the side of the road. Site observations
also revealed that some visitors to businesses on the east (outbound)
side of Blossom Street park in the cobbled areas in contravention of the
waiting restrictions.

Streetscape

Observations on site showed that a considerable amount of road
signage exists inbound on Blossom Street, which can present a
confusing array of information to drivers. This, combined with the
collection of street furniture in the vicinity of bus stops can impede the
free movement of pedestrians.

Consultations

To identify the issues that would inform the compilation of the key
requirements for any scheme option(s), 2000 questionnaire leaflets (See
Annex B) were distributed to residents and businesses within and
adjacent to the study area, augmented by direct consultation with key
internal and external stakeholders (see Annex C).

145 completed questionnaires were received. Of these, 131 (90%) were
from residents and 14 (10%) were from local businesses. A summary of
the responses is contained at Annex D. The key issues are, in no
particular order, listed below:

) Concerns regarding safety for cyclists due to lack of dedicated
cycle lanes, traffic volumes and vehicle conflict (particularly buses);

. Dangers for pedestrians crossing roads (low priority at traffic
signals) and conflict with cyclists riding on footways;

. Timing of traffic signals and lack of synchronisation slowing down
traffic and causing congestion (although some stated traffic travels

too fast);
. Congestion on Blossom Street limits travelling within the area;
. lllegal parking of delivery vehicles and coaches;

. Bus services are expensive, overcrowded, run at inappropriate
times and are unreliable;

. Bus stop facilities are inadequate;

. Buses blocking lanes and using two lanes when turning;



38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

Page 27

) Bus lane difficult to cross and traffic signals hold-up other traffic;

) Air and noise pollution; and

. Difficulties turning right in/out of South Parade plus unsafe to
complete some manoeuvres at junctions.

Review of previous and other ongoing studies and scheme bids

Several studies (see Annex E) were reviewed in order to appreciate the
scheme in a wider context to ensure it is complementary to the longer
term objectives for the locality and the city overall. A brief outline of their
respective influence follows in paragraph 39 to paragraph 45.

Both of the safe routes to schools reports recommended introducing
cycle lanes and removing one lane of traffic from Blossom Street
(northbound), together with an new pedestrian crossing (on Blossom
Street) at the Blossom Street/Nunnery Lane junction.

The A59 Corridor Report recommended that the Holgate Road route be
taken forward as the preferred route for Park & Ride services along the
A59. This would create additional bus services running at 10 minute
frequency along Blossom Street.

The York Central Transport Masterplan Study proposes that the main
access to the York Central Site will be via Water End and Holgate Park.
Therefore, it is unlikely that Blossom Street will be a main route in and
out of the site. Park & Ride services may, initially, run along the A59, but
may, ultimately, run through the new development. An access to York
Central via Queen Street is also proposed but this may be for public
transport only and is largely dependent on the location of a new public
transport interchange in the vicinity of York railway station.

The Holgate Road Gyratory Study concluded that a scheme to form a
gyratory system incorporating The Mount, Holgate Road and Dalton
Terrace in order to improve facilities for pedestrians and cyclists, air
quality and bus journey reliability should not be taken at the time
(2005/06). However, revisiting this at a later time was not ruled out.

The council is currently preparing a Major Scheme Bid for Access York
Phase 1, which comprises three Park & Ride sites with ancillary bus
priority measures. One of these is the A59 Park & Ride, for which, if the
bid is successful, the services will run on the A59 (see also
paragraph 41). The bid also includes a new Park & Ride at Askham Bar,
with bus priority measures on the A1036 (Tadcaster Road / The Mount /
Blossom Street). These measures should in the longer-term regulate
traffic flows along Blossom Street by gating traffic further out from the
city centre.

A bid to the Regional Transport Board has also been submitted for
Access York Phase 2, consisting of improvements to the Outer Ring
Road (ORR) and other measures on roads within the ORR to improve
the situation for walking, cycling and public transport. If the bid for
inclusion in the Regional Funding Allocation programme is successful, it



45.

46.

Page 28

will have an impact on (reducing) traffic flows around the Inner Ring
Road and connecting radial routes.

As the Blossom Street area is entirely within the city's AQMA, any
increase in congestion here will be contrary to its air quality objectives.

Key Requirements

Through examination of the questionnaire responses and discussion at a
workshop Halcrow held with Officers, the identified key requirements for
any future scheme option(s) to satisfy included:

Highway

. Road space reallocation, principally on Blossom Street inbound to
facilitate cycle lane(s) to current design standards;

) Reduce cycle/vehicle and pedestrian vehicle conflict in and out of
Queen Street; and

) Review traffic movements at Micklegate to increase junction
capacity, and

Cycling

. Sufficient cycle lane(s), principally on Blossom Street inbound
between Holgate Road and Queen Street Blossom Street approach
to the Blossom Street / Queen Street / Micklegate / Nunnery Lane
junction;

. Reduce cycle/vehicle conflict in and out of Queen Street and along
Blossom Street outbound

. Safer routing for cyclists along Blossom Street outbound turning
into the A59,

) Easier and safer egress from Micklegate, and

) Alternate routing of cyclists away from busy junctions via off road
cyclepaths / less highly trafficked roads

Pedestrian

. Formalise crossing at the north end of Blossom Street;

. Improved crossing facilities on Blossom Street by former Odeon
cinema;

. Reduce pedestrian/vehicle conflict in and out of Queen Street, and

. Reduce pedestrian/vehicle conflict at The Crescent

Public transport

. Reduce bus queues at inbound bus stops

. Improve bus turning movements in and out of Queen Street and
ease of access to/egress from bus stops along Blossom Street
outbound;

. Improve bus boarding/alighting on Blossom Street outbound, and
. Rationalise waiting facilities.



47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

Page 29

Streetscape/Environment improvements

. Reduce the amount of unnecessary information for drivers.

. Rationalise street furniture surrounding bus stops (bus stop
shelters, flags and litter bins) to ensure pedestrians are not
impeded along footways whilst walking along Blossom Street.

) Ensure compliance with Air Quality Management Plan.

Initial appraisal

Whilst many of the key requirements are complimentary, others are not.
For example, reallocating road space, principally on Blossom Street
inbound, to facilitate cycle lane(s) will have an adverse effect on the
efficiency of the Blossom Street / Queen Street / Micklegate / Nunnery
Lane junction, thereby increasing congestion and/or vehicle queue
lengths, potentially leading to a degradation in air quality.

It will, therefore, be difficult to devise a scheme option(s) that satisfies all
of the key requirements. Hence, the relative benefits/disbenefits of any
scheme option(s) will need to be considered by Members to decide on a
preferred option for further evaluation and detailed design.

Conclusions

Accident records show that there are two accident cluster sites
interspersed by many other accidents at other points on Blossom Street
and its associated junctions. In total 48 accidents have been recorded
over the past five years, three of which were serious. Many of these
accidents involved either pedestrians or cyclists. Both of these groups
are high-up in the city’s ‘Hierarchy of Road Users.’

Current facilities for pedestrians and cyclists are less than ideal. In order
to provide cycle lanes on Blossom Street inbound, one of the existing
traffic lanes could be removed. This approach was advocated in the Safe
Route to Schools Reports for All Saints RC School and Millthorpe
Secondary School. However, reducing Blossom Street inbound form 3
lanes to 2 severely reduces the capacity of the Blossom Street / Queen
Street / Micklegate / Nunnery Lane junction, which is already congested,
and this may have an adverse effect on local air quality. The junction
capacity could be restored to its present capacity if access restrictions at
Micklegate (i.e. no entry/exit to or from Micklegate) are applied.

The following options are, available to the council:

e Option 1 - accept the principal that the Blossom Street / Queen
Street / Micklegate / Nunnery lane junction should be altered and the
streetscape of Blossom Street between this junction and its junction
with Holgate Road should be enhanced to improve the accessibility
and safety for all road users, particularly pedestrians and cyclists.
The alterations and enhancements to be considered will have an
impact on the operation of the junction and congestion to varying
degrees. Subject to this, scheme options should be presented to a
future EMAP for their relative benefits/disbenefits to be considered



52.

53.

Page 30

by Members in order to decide on a preferred option for further
evaluation, consultation and detailed design
Option 2 reject the principal.

Corporate Priorities

Implementing alterations to Blossom Street and its associated junctions
to improve accessibility and safety for all road users, particularly
pedestrians and cyclists, will contribute to the following Corporate
Priorities:

Reduce the environmental impact of council activities and encourage,
empower and promote others to do the same. There is considerable
scope for encouraging more people to use more sustainable forms of
transport in a safer environment.

Increase the use of public and other environmentally friendly modes
of transport. There is considerable scope for encouraging a more
walking, cycling and use of buses as the improvements will include
new cycle lanes and new/improved pedestrian crossings.

Improve the health and lifestyles of the people who live in York, in
particular among groups whose levels of health are the poorest.
There is considerable scope for encouraging a more walking, cycling
and use of buses as the improvements will include new cycle lanes
and other measures to benefit pedestrians and public transport users.

Local Transport Plan 2006-2011 (LTP2): The scheme would contribute
to several of the aims of the recently submitted LTP2, namely:

To reduce the levels of actual and perceived safety problems;

To enhance opportunities for all community members, including
disadvantaged groups, to play an active part in society;

To improve the health of those who live or work in, or visit, York, and
To reduce the impact of traffic and travel on the environment,
including air quality, noise and the use of non-renewable resources.

Implications

54. This report has the following implications:

Financial - There are no financial implications for the council at this
stage. Once the detailed design has been undertaken, further
resources may be required to undertake additional consultation and
implement the measures.

Human Resources (HR) — There are no HR implications for the
council.

Equalities - The potential improvements to reach opportunities and
facilities within York using wider range of more sustainable transport
that would have otherwise been unattractive.



Page 31

e Legal — There are no legal implications at present.
e Crime and Disorder — There are no legal implications at present.

e Information Technology (IT) — there are no IT implications at
present.

e Property — There are no property implications at present.
e Sustainability — No comments.

e Other — No comments.

Risk Management

55. In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy the main
risk that has been identified in this report could lead to the inability to
meet the council’s objectives (Strategic).

56. Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score for the
recommendation is less than 16 and thus at this point the risks need only
to be monitored as they do not provide a real threat to the achievement
of the objectives of this report.

Recommendations
57. That the Advisory Panel advise the Executive Member to:
i Note this report (including, Annexes).

ii.  Accept the principal that the Blossom Street / Queen Street /
Micklegate / Nunnery lane junction should be altered and the
streetscape of Blossom Street between this junction and its
junction with Holgate Road should be enhanced to improve the
accessibility and safety for all road users, particularly
pedestrians and cyclists. The alterations and enhancements to
be considered will have an impact on the operation of the
junction and congestion to varying degrees.

ii. Receive a further report from officers at a future EMAP
describing potential options and how they satisfy, as far as is
practicable, the key requirements.

Reason: The study confirmed that current facilities for pedestrians and
cyclists are less than ideal, evidenced by the number of
accidents that have occured in the past five years. Accepting the
principal that the Blossom Street / Queen Street / Micklegate /
Nunnery Lane junction should be altered and the streetscape of
Blossom Street between this junction and its junction with
Holgate Road should be enhanced, particularly and ultimately
deciding on an option to address the issues as far as is
paracticable should improve safety for all road users,
pedestrians and cyclists.



Page 32

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
lan Stokes Damon Copperthwaite

Principal Transport Planner Assistant Director of City Strategy

City Strategy

Tel No. 01904 551429

Report Approved | v Date 03/10/08

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Patrick Looker
Finance Manager, Resource & Business Management, City Strategy

Wards Affected: All

Micklegate

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers
None

Annexes

Annex A — Blossom Street Existing Layout Drawings
Annex B — Questionnaire Leaflet

Annex C — Internal and External Stakeholders
Annex D — Summary of Consultation Responses
Annex E — List of Studies Reviewed



Page 33

Momd Marklgs
Dbl ¥ollow Unos
Taclls Padg

Locafion of Plan

Annex A

Blossom Street Existing Layout Drawings



- s

. .y
WIS

1oy S dmey
s & 5 E L T
AL0—=L L5

kel = F =41 ]

ey
B[ o UG

ﬂ?l.".u!'h_k-'-ﬂﬂﬂu J .
sl peoy

Blossom Street Existing Layout Drawings

Annex A



Page 35

si L alHE g B g §§ &
U - PEC

;:ﬁ:,": i?[ E ::.L g ;
{HEN (LU : # 13

B 8

!'_ Afn ]

| s

|| = §EfEld

Blossom Street Existing Layout Drawings Annex A



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37

~ S | A1036 Blossom Street
YORK Survey of Residents and Businesses

77alcrow

|_ Please return all questionnaires and any other comments by 1st August 2008.

Have your say...

Background

City of ¥York Council are carrying out a detailed study examining current tfransport issues along the A1036
Bloszom Strest in order to develop a strategy for the future to improve access and safety for all road users. The
ziudy arsa covers Blozsom Street between the Queen StreetMunnery Lane junction to the north and the Holgate
Road/East Mount Road junction to the south, as shown on the map bekow.

[Blossom Street Study Area| . e A

e Sk A o

B

i
e

.
by e o e

The strateqy for this section of Blossom Street aims to improve joumnsy times and reliability for public transport,

improve accessibility for all forms of frangport, and increase the safety of pedestrians and cyclists, whilst minimis-
ing the impact on the character of the area and improving the environment for local residents.

We want your views
FPleass complete the questionnaire and return it fo the FREEPOST addresz by 1st August 2008.

have your say...

Plzase note that any comments made in the questionnaire will be used solely for analysis purpeses. If you require more
information on the study or wish o receive a response, please write to:

Transport Planning Unit {Blossom Street Consultation)
City of York Council

g 5t Leonard's Place

York Y¥O1 7ET

Questionnaire Leaflet Annex B



Page 38

1a)

1)

2]

3

4]

5a)

5n)

ga)

£Dj

7a)

7hj

B

93)

anj

How oftan do mambers of your household § buginess [Including yoursslf) usually traval along Blossom Strast using
gach of the following forms of transpert? An outward and rebum joumney should be countsd &5 one Fp. Tick one gahion per mods

Indicate In the apaca to the right the number of paopla In your housshold ! bugingss [Including yoursslf) who usually maks
these |OUMeys. WTHe number in dox to right

Mumiber of
a) Morgthan S-Tifps 2-4ifps  Cnelp  Onetdp Cnetdp LESE Mlaver ) Fizsenon ¢
T UpE Irips pEr WEek  pEr week per per often business
gr wesk r wesk fartrisght mansh travelling
Car Car
Bus Bus
Cycle Cycle
Walk Walk

IT you fravel mainly by car, whare do you park when at home § at your business? (within or ad)acent to the Blossom Sirest
atudy area)
Flezss wille 3 strest name I your place of resldence or busingss Is within or adjacent o the study area

Whers does your housshold's f business” most fraquent [ourney along Bloszom Streat start from?
Fizaza wiile 3 postcode, strest rame or name of beshessshop

Whera la this Journay to?
Fizaza wrile & postcods, strest rame or name of beshness/shop

4t what tima do members of your housshold | buginese usually makes this jJournay?

Befora 07:D0 09:30 1G:00 AfEr

0710 09:30 16:00 13:00 1800
Oubward journey (from BioBE0M Straet): Tick one anly
Retum joumey (to Blassom Sireet): Tick ane only

Do you fesl thars are any Iimitations In using the following forme of transport tedfrom Sloesom Strest?

L= Ng

Car
Bus
Cytle
Walk

IT you hava anawered yes to queation 5a) please provide datalls below (DiEasSe Conminue on 3 Separate Sheet If needed) -

How would you describe the padestrian crossing faclitles within the =tudy arsa at the following lecationa?

Sallstactony Unsatlsfacony Don't know

Blossom Street | Quesn Sireet ! Micklzgats | Munnery Lane
ACTOEE Blossom Sirest (2. at Ooson Cinema)

Blossom Siraet | The Mount f Holgate Road

Zaner [pleass s1ate)

If unsatisfaciory, where and how could they ba Improved? Piesse siate fcantinue on 2 segarate shest i neaded)

How would you daseribe cyeling facilliles along Bloseom Strest?

Sallstactony Unsatlsfaciony Don't know

Blassom Steet ( Quesn Sireel | Mickizgats | Munnery Lane
Blossom Street Inbound [biw Holgats Road and Quesn Sireel)
Blossom Street outbound (biw Queen Street and Hoigate Road)
Biossom Straet / Tha Mount f Holgate Roas

Omner (pleass siatz)

If unaatiafactory, where and how could they ba Improved? Plesse siare (continue on 2 segarate shest If needed)

Would the provizion of aithar of thaze facllitise be lIkely to encourage you or memiers of your housshold f business o
camy cut more Journeys by Bloycle?

=l [l
Cn-road cycle lanes where Epace permits Tick cne omy
OfT-road cycle faciiiles where space permis ICK one omy

How would you describe bue stops and faclitties along Blogsom Strest?

satstacey [ ] Unzatistactory [ ] Dontanos [ ]

IT unzatisfactory, where and how could they ba Improved? Plesse siare (continue on 2 5egarate shest if neaded)

Questionnaire Leaflet Annex B



)

Page 39

How wiould you daacribe the level of vehicle congestion at the following locations?

Heawy  Medum  Lgit Hong

Dan't know

Taowards clly bebween Holgale Road and Queen Sirest

Dut-of-city between Munneny Lane and Easl Mount Road

Quesn Sireet

Wicklzgale

Kunnery Lans

The Mouns

Holgate Road

11a) Do you fasl thena are any air quality leswas on Blosaom Sireat?

110} If you hava answered yas to question 11a) plasse provida detalles below (pease continue on 3 segaraies sheet i nesded) |

b MO

I —

12&) How wiould you dascribs the genaral efrest amvironmant aiong Biossom Sireat?

safistactory [ Unzatisfactary ] oontinow ]

120 I unaatlstactory, whare and how could It b8 Improvad? Fiease stale (coniinue an a separate shest ¥ neesed)

13) Mew parking / waling rastrichons may be requirad at locatione along Blossom Strast. What restricfions would you favour?

14)

15)

18)

17

18)

13)

20

1)

Tiok ane Dreference paroaaion only

Mo parking! Mo
walting  parking !
atpean  walting 3t Fa Mo
Lezatlon parizds only amvime Restriclons  Opinion

Towards clty on Blossom Street between Holgate Road and Queen Sireet

Out-of-zity on Skossom Stresl bebween Munnery Lare and East Mount Road

Are you complating thizs form as a local regident or & local businesa? Tick one aniy

Regligent [ ] Business [ ]

i you are responding a5 3 local resident please move on 10 Question 21.

Wwhat Ia the nature of your busineses? Freass state

How ciffen does your business recelve dellveries bo premi=es on Bloseom Sirest via sach form of traneport?
Muitipl one 24 ne Less MEver
dellverizs  dellvery delkeres  delleery aman
perday  pErOay  perweSk  [erweel
Car
Wan
Light Gooss Vehicie
Haayy Eoods Venide
af wihat tima of day oo you usually racelve your deliveriss?
Safora 07.00 0.0 1600 Afer
0700 03:30 16:00 18:00 16100
C—arC—1
On what days doss your business usually recalvs dellveriaeT Fiszse fok 2l thaf apply
Monday  Tuesday Wednesday Trmrs-:laﬁ' Friday  Saturday  Sunda
Deoee wour business rely on customars balng abls to park In cloee proximity fo your premigse’?
L — LN —
Haw many mambers of your housshold ! business belong to the follewing age group?

Fiease wrke the nwmber in ihe box

ungerss [ 163 [ ] =es [ 65+ [ ]

Plzasa write In your or your businessas postoods.
Tiis infarmation /s impoiTant io 562 wiether views aifer by respondents Mving in dierent sreas

MO OO0

Thank you for taking the time to fill in this questionnaire.

Fleaze send it back by ERIDAY 1=t AUGLIST 2008 by folding as instructed (no stamp reguired)

WAVIWAILIW I I IALIL W EmwWHAIIWw e

AR NN AN



Blossom Street Public Consultation - Leaflet Distrik

ACOLE rmee DRANM BT A

TGP
r Orgardsation

Tuvey 1,120 maporn I Coriciem of Hes Mpely's Talermy Oiten

Questionnaire Leaflet Annex B



Page 41

Internal and External Stakeholders

e Internal Consultation o0
o
o}
o

e External Consultation o
o
o}
o}
o}
o
o}
o
o}
o
o}
o
o}
o
o
o}
o
o
o}

Network Management;

Transport Planning;

Environment & Conservation;

Micklegate Ward Members.

York Blind and Partially Sighted Society;
York Access Group;

York Cycle Campaign;

Cyclists’ Touring Club;

Age Concern;

York Older People’s Forum;

All Saints RC School;

Millthorpe School;

Scarcroft School;

Frontagers (both residential and businesses);
York Civic Trust;

Bus Operators (First York, Coastliner,
Harrogate Coach, Door to Door, Hutchinsons,
Arriva, and EYMS);

Bus Users UK;

Confederation of Passenger Transport;
York Motorcycle Action Group;

Taxi Operators’ Groups;

AA / RAC, and any other motorists’ groups;
Freight Transport Association;

Road Haulage Association.

Note due to the timescale for developing the options it was not possible to
consult with those stakeholders shown in italics

Annex C



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43

Summary of Consultation Responses Annex D

Halcrow Group Limited

Amndale Houss Oiey Road Hesdingley Leeds LSe 2L
Tal 2dd (0113 220 8220 Fax «44 (01113 274 2024
warwthalcros. com

71alcrow

Technical Note

Project  Blossom Strest Multi Modal Study Date 19™ August 2003

Note Congultation of Local Residents and Businesses Ref CTDAFGI4T

Author Emma Fawlinzon

1 Introduction

11 Halcrow Group Limited has been commizsioned by the Ciy of York Councl (CYC) to

underiake a Multi Modal Study of the Blozsom Street Area of York_ This study has involved
consuliztion of parties on the isswes associated with travelling within the Blossom Street
siudy arsa.

1.2 Thig technical note summarss the methodology approach adopied in consultng local
residents and businesses along the comidor and goss on fo present analysis of the
consuliztion findings.

i Consultation Approach

21 The consultation approach adopted to capture the views of local residents and buzinesses
involved the preparation and distrbution of a guestionnaire. & copy of the questionnairs is
appendzd to this technical note. The consultaion period coversd a three week perod, with
the deading for receipt of completed gquestionnares beng Frday 1 August 2008,
Questionnaires were deliversd to appeoximately 2 0100 properties within the study arza.

i Resident and Business questionnaire responses

i1 The pursose of this s2ction of the techrical note iz to present the results of the residents
and business’ survey. The guestionnare was desgned with the aim of collectng
information regarding opinions on the current transport issues along Blossom Street

32 Of the 2,000 postal questionnaires distrbuted 145 were retumed, giving a response rate
of T%. Of the responses received 131 [30.3%) wers from local residents and 14 (9.7%)
from local businesses. |t should be noted that m the akles that follow, the totals do not
always add up to the same amount. Thiz is because some respondents failed o answer
some guestions that were asked.

4 Current Travel Patterns
41 To gain an understanding of the respondents current travel patierns the survey asked
how oft=n members of 2ach householdbusness travel along the Blossom Sirest by



Page 44

Summary of Consultation Responses Annex D
Technical Note 2 Page 2
Blossom Street Muli Modzal Stedy Comzultzton of Local Residents and Businesses

varyng modes of ransoor, where they travelled 1o and what time of day they underiook
their journey. One trip is classed as an owtward and a return journey.

47 The survey found that the majonty of respondents most frequently ravellzd along
Blossom Street on foot (B9 8%), with 65.0% of residents and businzzses who responded
to the survey driving along Blossom Street frequently and 57 3% cycling. Thess results
are shown in Takle 4.1

43 The mode of transport least wsed for frequent s is bus, with only 33 5% saying they
travelled by bus for two trips or more per week, and soms 61.5% stated that they used

the bus less than two tros per week.

Table 4.1 Current Travel Pattzms (all percentanes in rows squal 100

Frequent trips Less Frequent trips

(more than 2 trips per week] J (Less than 2 trips per week)

Frequency Percent Frequency Percent

Car Tk 850 4 350
Bug 3 38.5 36 815
Cydle 47 573 35 427
Walk 115 Bag 13 02

44 Rezpondents were ached fo state the mumber of people in their household/buzmess who

usually make the joumeys by each transport mode. Some 40.2% of residential
respondents walk with 31.5% travelling by car. Conversely 38.6% of businzss
respondents travel by car with only 22.8% walking. Some 26.7% of business
respondents fravel by bus compared to only 13.6% of residential respondeniz az shown
in Tahle 4.2,

Table 4.2 Pzrson Tnps slong Blossom Street

Residential Businesses

Frequency | Percent J Frequency | Percent

Car 174 i 4 jae
Bus I 1358 2 267
Cycle B0 145 12 118
Walk 211 402 23 228

Total 55l 100 1M 100




Summary of Consultation Responses

Technical Note 2

Page 45

Bloszom Strest Multi Modal Stedy

Annex D

Page 1

Conzultabon of Local Residents and Businesses

45

Rezpondents who mainly travel by car were asked whers they park within or adjacent to
the Blossom Street siudy arsa. A tofal of 20 different locations wers given. The most

popular locations were:

. £ast Mount Road;

. The Mount;

. Holgate Road;

. Park Sirset;

. South Parade;

. Moge Sirset;

. Dewsbury Terrace; and

. Trintty Lane.

These journeys were for the majority made durng peak hours. Table 4.4 shows that the

majorty of respondents make their cutward journey between 17-00 and 08:30 (51.5%)
wihilst the majority of respondents make their return joumeys between 16:00 and 1500

(43.1%).
Tablz 44 Time Penod of Cutward and Retum Joumsy
Outward Return
Frequency | Percent JFrequency | Percent
Befare 07:00 L} 63 2 15
07-00-0%:30 68 515 ] 38
08:30-18:00 43 3n 28 21
16:00-18:00 4 3l 62 431
After 18:00 f 46 32 288
Total 132 100 129 100

The survey moved on to ask respondents f they fesl there are any limitabons in using

gach of the different fransoort modes when fravelling toffrom Blossom Street. Takle 45
shows that the majority of respondents (37.1%) feel that there ars limitstions when
travelling by car tofrom Blossom Strest, with 50.0% feelng that there are Imitations

wien tfraveling by kicycle.



Page 46

Summary of Consultation Responses Annex D
Technical Note 2 Page 4
Blogzom Strest Mult Modal Study Conzultabon of Local Residents and Businesses

Tablz 4.5 Limiations with franzport fo/ffrom Blossom Sireet (all percentages in rows
equal 100

Yes No
Frequency | Percent J Frequency | Percent
Car ] LT 45 42 5
Bus 21 22 59 733
Cydle A7 0.0 47 0.0
Walk i 233 ™ 767
48 Rezpondents who stated that there are Emitations with travellng wa different modes
toffrom Blossom Street were azked o state what these were. The following answers
were given:
Cycling
49 Many regpondents raized issues with regards to the safety of cycling within the Blossom

Street arez and stated that this was dus to the lack of dedicated cycle lanes, the volume
of traffic along the road, vehicles parked in the way, drivers cutting cyclsts up, busss
intimidating cyclists and the spesd of vehicles along the route.

Traffic Lights

410 Many concamns were also rased morelation to the traffic lights within the study arsa with
the main concem keing the tming of the signalz and the lack of synchronisation. Many
respondents siated that there wers too many raffic signals along the route which slows
the trafiic down and causss congestion. Some respondents noted that the traffic lights at
the Blossom Street/Micklegate junction only allow a few cars through from Micklzgate i
any one phase whilst one respondent stated that the pedestrian phase at this junction iz
foo long.

Parking

41 |ssues raised in relation to parkng include the lack of residents parkng within the area,
ilegal parking of coaches and delivery vehicles on doukle yellow linsz, and problems
parsing durmg business hours.

E:: g E._';_,!
412 A total of twenty one respondents stated that congestion along Blossom Street was bad
and acted as a limitation to travelling within the area.



Page 47

Summary of Consultation Responses Annex D
Technical Note 2 Page &
Blozzom Sirest Multi Modal Study Conzultaton of Local Residents and Businesses

413

414

416

Walking
Dangsrs crozeing roads within the ares, cyclists riding along pavements, noise and air
polluton, and pedestrians having low onority at raffic signals were cited as Emitations to
walking to/from premizes along Blossom Street.

Bus

Rezponzes in relzton to limitatons 1o bus travel included inappropriats bus imes, farss
being too high, inadeguate facilities at bus stops, overloaded buses, and the unreliability
of services.

Other

Other rezponses mcluded: difficulties turning right infout of South Parade; traffic
travelling foo fast; noize and ar pollution; busse blocking lanss and uzing two lanss
when turmng; unsate to complete some manoewvres at junciions; difficulty crossing bus
lan=; and bus lans Fghtz hold up all ofher traffic.

The survey then went on 1o ask the ooiron of the residents and business respondenis
on existng faclities within the study area:

Pedestrian Crossing Facilities

The majorty of reseondenis feel that pedestrian crossmng facilities within the study area
are satisfactory, 25 shown in Figure 5.1, Some 42 9% of rezpondants fzel that
pedestrian crossmg faclives at the Blossom Street | Queen Street [ Micklegate /
Munnery Lane junciion are unsatsfactory, with M4 .8% gwving the same response for the
Blossom Street/ The Mount [ Holgate Road ncton. Only 15.4% of respondents feel
that the pedestrian crossing facilities across Blozsom Sirest are unsatisfactory.



Page 48

Summary of Consultation Responses Annex D
Technical Note 2 Page &
Blogzom Sirest Multi Modal Study Conzultabon of Local Residents and Businesses
Figure 5.1 Satisfaction with pedesinan crossing faciitizs

| @ Satsfactory @ Unsatisfactory o Don't Hnuw|

Blosgom Street [ Clugen
Street/ Micklegate |
Munnery Lane

Across Blossom Sireet
comnseniems | e [
| e

Blszom Strest/ The Mount
Holgate Road

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 30% &% 70% 80% 90% 100%

L Although 100% felt that other pedestrian crossing facilfies were unzatsfactory only one
respondent answered this question. The pedestran crossmg the answer refers to iz
along Holgate Road.

5.3 Those whao felt that pedestrian crossng faclities wers unsatisfaciory suggesied the
following imgrovements:

. Sigmal controlled crossings at Nunnery Lans/Jueen Street Junction on all
sides;

. One straight croseing outside the Odeon building;

. Lese traffic lights;

. Redesign all crossings;

. Zebra Crossings;

. Red light cameras to deter drvers from driving through red lights;

. Greater protechon for pedestrans at crossing points;

. Increase wdth of pavements and central reservations;

. Reduce pedestrian waiting times at crossings;

. FTH buszes straddle croszings when ‘green man’ iz on;

. Extra pedestnan crossings;

. A zebra crogzing half way down Nunnery Lane;



Page 49

Summary of Consultation Responses Annex D
Technical Note 2 Page |

Blozzom Strest Multi Modal Stedy Conzultabon of Local Residents and Businesse:

. Pedecinan priority crossing near the school; and
. More frequent pedesinan phazes

Cycling Facilities

The majorty of respondents feel that cycling facildies within the study arsa are
unsatisfactory, as shown in Figure 6.1, Some 43.5% of respondents feel that cycling
facilibes at the Blossom Street/ Queen Street | Micklegate [ Nunmery Lans juncton are

o o

—t

unsatisfactory, with 39.3% giving the same response for the Blossom Street { The Mount
[ Holgate Road junction. Almast half of recpondents (46.7%) felt that cycling faclities
outhound on Bloszom Street between Cueen Street and Holgats Road are
unsatisfactory with 41.2% feeling the same in regards to cyclng facilites i the nbound

direction.
Figure 6.1 Satisfaction with cycling facilities
| O Sstisfactory @ Unsatefaciory OO Dont Kn-::-'.'.r|
Blossom Stest/ Cuesn
Srest! Mickiegake | Munnery 24.6% 26.1%
Lane
Blozzom Srestnbound
s [zt N -
Sresd
Blogzom Srestoubound
et
Rioad)
Blszom Street/ The Mount!
- = N
Hulgzle Road
Oiher 100.0% o{m
NI N N N N I
0 1R 20%  30% 40% S0 60 T%  BD% 0% 100%
6.2 Although 100% felt that other cyclng faciities were satsfactory only one respondent

answered thiz question. The location at which thiz anzwer refers fo ic along South
Parade.

&,
(%]

Those who felt that cycling facilities were unsatizfactory suggested the following
improvements



Page 50

Summary of Consultation Responses Annex D
Technical Note 2 Page &
Blogzom Strest Mulli Modal Study Consultation of Local Residents and Businesses

. Dedicated cycle facilities
. Cycle lanes;
. Wider cycle lanes;
. Continuous cycle lanss
. Cycle lane arcund Micklegaie;
. Cycles lanss with protection from buges; and
. Separate signzls for cycles
6.4 The gquesiicnnaire went on to aek if the provision of on-road cycle lanes and off-road

cycle facilities would encourage respondents fo carry out more jowrneys by bicycle
Table 6.1 shows the results.

Tablz 6.1 Prowvision of cycls facilities

Yes No
Frequency | Percent J Frequency | Percent
Omn-road cycle lanes ] 498 59 0.4
Cff-road cycle facilities &0 541 51 459
6.5 The majority of respondents (54 1%) felf that off-road cycle facilites would encourage

them fo carry out more journeys by kicycle compared with 43 .6% who felt that on-road
cycle lanes would encourage them fo cycle more.

7 Bus Stop Facilities
1 The majority of respondents (86.6%) feel thal bus siop facilities within the study area ars
unszatisfactory, 32 shown in Takle 7.1
Table 7.1 Satisfaction with bus stop facilities
Frequency Percent
Satisfaciory o4 B3.E
Unzatisfactory 21 15.3
Don't Know 22 16.
Total 137 100
Fis Those who felt that bus stop facilifies were unzatisfactory suggested the following
improvements
. More slops,
. Improved bus stop locations;

. Real time information at siops;



Page 51

Summary of Consultation Responses Annex D
Technizal Note 2 Page 2
Blogsom Sirest Mulli Modal Study Consultabon of Local Residents and Businesses
* Clearer imformation at stope;
* More sheliers;
. Outbound bus stope need longer laybys; and
# Cleaner bus sheltzrs.
g Street Environment
&1 The majorty of rezpondents feel that heavy congestion iz experienced in most locations

within the siudy area as shown in Figure 8.1, Scme 84.0% of rezpondents felt that
congesiion was heavy towards the city centrs between Holgate Road and Cueen Sireet,
with 62.2% staling heavy for Nunnery Lane, 43.2% for Holgate Road, 44.6% for Cueen
Street The majonity of respondents (50.4%) felt that congestion was medium out of the
ity betwieen Nunnery Lane and Ezst Mount Road, with 47_6% statng medium for
Micklegate and 45 5% for The Mount.

Figure 8.1 Level of congestion
| @ Hzaw @ Medium O Light O Mone @ Don't Know
Towards cly betwsen Holgale | | ﬁtll.m’.
Rioad and Cussn Srest | | | |
e
Cluzen Sreel 44.6%
1 1 | [
Micklegale 30.4% .
1 [ | ]
Murmery Lans 6229 N -
1 [ | | ]
Thie: M ourit 44 0% E L
Hokgate Foad _ | |4u-r.|
| - | [ [ [
e 0% 20% 0% 40% 50% B0 TO% B0 0% 100%

62 Respondenis were then asked if they felt that there were any air quality issues on
Blogzom Streel The majorily of both rezidential and business respondents feel that
there are air guality izswes along Blossom Street with 56.3% and 64 3% giving this
answer respeciively.



Summary of Consultation Responses

Technical Note 2

Page 52

Blozzom Strest Mulii Modal Study

Annex D

Page 10

Consultation of Local Regidents and Bugineszes

[="]

Lan

(%=1

£n

Table 8.1 Aw Quality lzsues

Residential Businesses
Frequency | Percent [ Frequency | Percent
Yes &7 58.3 9 64.3
i 52 437 5 357
Total 19 100 14 100

Those respondents who thought that thers were air quality issues along Blossom Street

were asked to provide details. The following answers wers given:

. Fumes and smoke;

. {02 emigsiong;

. Comgestion and etationary traffic cause air pollution;
® Paoltubon from Buses and HGV:
. Meoize pollution

. Fithy and dusty

. Smell of diesel;

. smell from KFC;

. smell from dramg;

. Litter; and

. Wamit.

Respondenis were then acked how they would deccribe the general streel environment

along Blogsom Street. Takle 8.2 showe that the majorty of residential recpondents

Blozsom Street iz unzatsfactory.

Tablz 8.7 Satisfaction with sireet emvronment

Residential Businesses
Frequency | Percent [ Frequency | Percent
Satisfactory 32 262 7 a0.0
Unsatisfactory g3 B6.0 T 50.0
Don’t Know 7 57 0 0.0
Total 122 100 14 100

Those respondents who f2lt that the sirest environment was unsatisfaciory were azked

to give suggestions of where and how it could ke improved. The following answers were

included



Page 53

Summary of Consultation Responses Annex D
Technical Note 2 Page 11
Blogzom Strest Mulli Modal Study Consultation of Local Residents and Buginesses

. A car park for use when visiting local shops;
. Remove on-street parking;
. Remaove clutier on footpaths;
. Reduce street fumiture;
. Improve pavement surfacing;
. Widen foocipaths;
. Improwe Odeon bulding;
. Improve shoo frontagss;
. Remove cydists from pavemenis;
. Improve pricrity for pedesirians and cyclists;
. Introduce road chargss for vehicles;
. Reduce noiss;
. Reduce emell from takeaways;
. Reduce traffic;
. Plant more frees and flowers;
. Better remaval of litter and graffiti;
. Improve sireet cleaning;
. Gef shops and takeaways 1o take responsibility for cleaning up; and
. Reduce cignage.
6.5 Respondeniz wers informed that new parking‘waiting restrictions may ke required at

locations along Blossom Street as part of any improvement scheme. They were then
asked what reginctions they would favour. Figurs 8.2 shows the resulis.

8.7 The majority of both recidents and businesses would prefer *No parking/waiting at
anytime® along Blossom Street towards the city centre between Holgate Road and
Cueen Street with 37.9% and 35.7% giving this answer respectively. 35.7% of busness
respondents would favour "No parking/wailing at peak pericds only” at this location as
would 32 8% of recidential respondents.

6.8 The majority of both residents and businesses would prefer "No parking/waiting at peak
perods only” along Blossom Street out of the city ketwesn Nunnery Lane and East
Mount Road with 39.73% and 50.0% giving this answer respectively. 31.9% of residential
respondents would favour “Ne parking/wailing at anytime” at thig location.

k] some 21.4% of business respondents would not like to see any parking’waiting
restrictione in either location.



Page 54

Summary of Consultation Responses

Technical Note 2

Blogeom Sirest Mulli Modal Study

Annex D

Page 12

Consultation of Local Residents and Businesses

Figure 6.2

Parking Rezinchions

|E| Mo Parking! waiting at peak pericds only @ No parking'waiting at anyime [ No resirictions O Mo opinion
g | 11
£ O Residents 32.8% 8.6%| 207%
> . : ks
2|
-
85 _
g ';i Businesses 357% _ 2.4% FA
gy —

o

3
§1, oo ST D ]
253 cafEes
- T =
i 'Ef"" Businesses 50.0°% m 24 Ay
S & I e

BN N N I
0% 0% 20% 30% 40% G50% 60% TO%  80% 90% 100%

=T~ ]

—a

Business Information

Businezs respondents were asked to siate how often their busmess receives deliveries
o premizes on Elossom Street via different forms of transport as showm n Figure 9.1,



Page 55

Summary of Consultation Responses Annex D

Technical Mote 2 Page 12

Blogzom Sirest Mulii Modal Study Comnsultation of Local Residents and Businesses

Fiigure 8.1 Businezs Delvenss

= Muliiple deliveries per day @ One delivery per day O 2-4 deliveries per week

O Cne delivery per wsek M L=ss Often @ Mewer

T T T T T T T T
Car 33.3% - 22.2% | 11.1ﬂ+’- 22.29%

Van bh.6% D.+‘% 22.2% D.+‘l 22.2%

Light Goods Vehicle 417% [Ll.Jr% 25.0% -I].. 25.09%

Heawy Goods Vehicle 14.3% 14, 3% 42.5%

0% 0% 20% 30% 40% S50% &0% T0%  BO0%  80% 100%

Of those businesses who recsive deliveries by car one third [33.3%) receive multipls
delveries per day, with 22.2% receiving 2-4 deliveries per week. The majority of
busineszes who receive deliveries by van receive multiple deliveries per day (55.6%)

8.2

with 22 2% receiving 2-4 deliveries by van per week.

Some 41.7% of business respondents receive multiple deliverizs per day by light goods
vehicle with one guarter receiving 2-4 deliveries per wesk by light goods vehicle. The
majority of business respondents (42 9%) never receive deliveries by heavy goods

vehicle

94 The gussiionnaire went on to agk business respondents at what time of day they usually

receive their deliveries. The resulis are shown in Tabls 9.1



Page 56

Summary of Consultation Responses Annex D

Technical Mote 2 Page 14

Bloszom Sirest Multi Modal Study Consultation of Local Regidents and Businesses

Table 8.1 Delvery Times

Frequency Percent
Before 07:00 1 2.0
07000930 3 15.0
(9:30-18:00 11 55.0
1&:00-18:00 4 20.0
After 18:00 1 50
Total 20 100
95 The majority of deliveries are received within the inter-peak period (09:30-18:00) with
B5.0% of responges giving this answer. One fifth of deliveries are received during the
evening peak and 15.0% during the moming peak.
96 Businszs respondents were then asked on what days the usually receive their deliveries,
The vast majorty of deliveries (89.2%) are during the week.
Table 8.2 Delvery Days
Frequency Percent
Monday 13 12.6
Tussday 11 16.6
Wednesday 12 13.2
Thureday 11 16.8
Friday 12 182
Saturday b Th
Sunday 2 30
Total 1] 100
by The gquesiionnaire concluded by asking business respondenis if their business relies on

custorners being able to park in cloze proximity to their premizes. Some 71 4% of
business respondents sfated that their busmese does rely on customers being akle to

pars in cloge proximity.



Page 57

List of Studies Reviewed Annex E

All Saints RC School Safe Routes fo Schools Report — Sustrans, December
2001

Millthompe Secondary School Safe Routes to Schools Report — Sustrans,
Dzcember 2001

A9 Comidor Report - Atking, 2002;

York Central Transport Masterplan Study - Faber Maunsell, 2005 [Halcrow
update)

Holgate Road Gyratory Report — Halorow, 200506

Local Transport Plan 2006-2011 - City of York Councl, 2006

Local Development Framework York Morthwesst Area Acbon Plan Issues and
Opfions Report — City of York Coundl, 2007

Access York Phaze 1 Region Transport Board Submission — City of York
Council, 2008

Air Quality Management Plan — City of York Council
Freight Strateqy



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59 Agenda Item 5

YORK

QJZQ‘ CITY OF
g COUNCIL

X

Meeting of Executive Members for City Strategy 20 October 2008
and Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

James Street Link Road Phase 2
Stage 1 — Traffic Forecast Refresh

Summary

1. This report presents the output of traffic modelling recently undertaken,
to refresh the modelling previously undertaken as part of the Foss Basin
Transport Implications report completed in 2003 (2003 Study), in order to
confirm the need for James Street Link Road Phase 2 (Phase 2) and
determine the optimum time for the construction of the short remaining
eastern section for its completion.

2. This report also presents several recommendations for progressing the
design and construction of the short remaining southern section of
Phase 2 (P2S), in order to secure best value for the council.

Background

3. The ‘Foss Basin’ area of York located to the north-east of the city centre,
has undergone significant development in recent years, including: the
construction of a new supermarket (Morrisons) and DIY superstore
(Homebase), both of which are off Foss Islands Road; the council’s new
Eco-Depot, off James Street and the Persimmon’s homes residential
development off Heworth Green, which is nearing completion.

4. In recognition of the anticipated traffic impacts in the Foss Basin and the
wider area encompassing Heworth Green, Melrosegate and Lawrence
Street / Hull Road, generated by these developments, (see Annex A)
Jacobs Consultancy was commissioned to undertake the ‘Foss Basin
Transport Implications’ study. The study sought to investigate the
implications of development proposals within the Foss Basin area of
York, by modelling a series of development scenarios and network
configurations to forecast future traffic flows and test highway
improvement proposals. The study report was received in August 2003.
It stated that the modelling indicated that James Street Link Road,
linking Lawrence Street to Heworth Green could play a significant role in
alleviating congestion on the Inner Ring Road, adding that constructing
both Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the link would yield the maximum benefit,
as Phase 1 alone had only limited impact.



Page 60

Following receipt of this report, construction of Phase 1 of the link road,
which incorporates dedicated cycle-lanes, cycleways and footways,
commenced in 2005/06 as part of the Local Transport Plan 2001-2006
(LTP1) Capital Programme. Its construction continued into 2006/07,
coinciding with the first year of the Local Transport Plan 2006-2011
(LTP2). It opened on the 27th of November 2006, connecting
Layerthorpe with Lawrence Street, with the aim of relieving congestion
on Foss Islands Road.

Phase 2 of the James Street Link Road connects Layerthorpe to
Heworth Green. The majority of this link (the northern section — P2N) is
effectively provided by the access road currently being constructed by
Persimmon Homes to its ‘The Forum’ residential development off
Heworth Green, which is nearing completion. The remaining 90m
(approximately) southern section of the Link Road (P2S), which will run
from the southern end of P2N through to a new traffic signal controlled
junction with Layerthorpe, passes through land which is currently owned
by a private developer and has Outline Planning Permission for
residential development, subject to the signing of an Agreement
(construction of this section of the link is one of the conditions attached
to the permission). As yet this agreement has not been signed, and it is
not clear at the present time if and when a decision to grant permission
(and hence the period within which the development will need to be
realised) will be made. Negotiations are ongoing between the developer
and Officers to ascertain if, when and how the site is intended to be
developed.

In order for the council to be in a more informed position for making its
decision regarding the revocation of Outline Planning Permission and
the condition requiring the construction of Phase 2, Halcrow was
appointed, in July 2008, to perform further modelling to refresh the
modelling undertaken for the Foss Basin Transport Implications study.
The purpose of this refresh was to:

¢ Affirm the need for James Street Link Road Phase 2 to realise the full
benefits of Phase 1 (already open);

e Determine the optimum time period for the construction of P2S,
expressed as the three following bands, to provide the best financial
return for the council:

e Upto 2011 (i.e. within the period of LTP2)

e Between 2011 and 2021 (i.e. medium-to-long-term)

e Post 2021 (i.e. long term, towards the end of the Local
Development Framework period)

The modelling refresh forms the first stage of a 4-stage study, design
and construction programme for the link road as summarised below:

o Stage 1: - A refresh of the modelled network and resultant traffic
forecasts previously undertaken;

o Stage 2: - An initial feasibility study to investigate the extent of
contamination on, or in the vicinity of, the proposed link and present
design options;



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Page 61

o Stage 3: - Detailed design of the section of link road and its
junction with Layerthorpe, and
o Stage 4: - construction

The traffic modelling refresh and its findings (Study Stage 1, Part 1)

The 2003 Study concluded that constructing James Street Link Road
Phase 1 would relieve some congestion in the peak hours, but maximum
relief would be achieved by building Phase 2 as well. On Saturdays
Phase 1 with Phase 2 alleviates Melrosegate and Layerthorpe. The first
element of the refresh was to review the development assumptions and
modelling methodology of the 2003 Study, and perform further modelling
if this was found to be out of date.

The refresh used the latest version of the Council’'s SATURN model
(2004), which, when projecting forward to 2011, 2021 and beyond 2021,
incorporated higher levels of development demand than the 2003
modelling as new development opportunities have come forward in York
since the 2003 study was undertaken.

2011

For 2011, the modelling showed that ‘without Phase 2’ the five following
junctions would approach or exceed their theoretical operating capacity:

. The Lord Mayor's Walk/ Monk Gate junction on the Inner Ring
Road (IRR);

The Layerthorpe/ Foss Island Road junction on the IRR;

The Mill Lane/ Heworth Green junction on Heworth Green;

The Layerthorpe/ Proposed James St Link Road junction, and

The Mill Lane/ Hawthorne Grove junction on Layerthorpe.

For the ‘With Phase 2’ in 2011 scenario, the IRR junctions improve
slightly, but a more significant reduction of flow on the IRR between
Layerthorpe and Monkgate is forecast. All the other junctions operate in
a stable manner within their capacity.

2021

For 2021, the modelling showed that ‘without Phase 2’ in addition to the
five following junctions listed in paragraph 14, the Lord Mayor’s Walk/
Monkgate junction on the IRR would approach or exceed theoretical
operating capacity.

If Phase 2 was implemented by 2021, the Layerthorpe/ Foss Island
Road junction and the Layerthorpe/ Proposed James St Link Road
junction on the IRR would operate in a stable manner within capacity.
The remaining junctions would, generally, experience some relief,
particularly Mill Lane/Hawthorne Grove which would otherwise be
operating above its theoretical capacity.



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Page 62

Influences on the timescale for constructing the short remaining
southern section of Phase2 (Study Stage 1, Part 2)

The developer of the site is required, under an Agreement associated
with the Planning Permission granted for its development, to construct
the final section of Phase 2 (P2S) which is due to run through the site.
However, the developer has not yet signed this Agreement and pursuant
to this, consultation with the site developer’s agent (see Annex B),
carried out as part of the traffic modelling refresh revealed that the
developer’s intentions for the site are uncertain at the present time.
Furthermore, if the Agreement is not signed, the Council may seek to
revoke the Planning Permission granted, thereby negating any
developer contribution to the construction of P2S.

If the council decides to revoke the Planning Permission in view of the
Agreement not being signed by the Developer, the option to fund directly
the construction of the link road itself might be pursued, if it can be
shown to be sufficiently beneficial.

The modelling refresh forecast that constructing Phase 2 would provide
saturation relief to some junctions and reduce traffic flows on some links.
The financial benefit arising from this congestion relief on the network
has been calculated at £620,000.00 at the end of its first year of
operation. The estimated cost for constructing P2S, based on Halcrow’s
experience of construction projects for similar roads on similarly
contaminated sites is £290,000.00 (excluding land purchase/
compensation costs, Part 1 compensation claims and service
diversions). This gives a benefit of £2.14 for every £1.00 spent.

Conclusions

Completion of Phase 2 would reduce total travel time and distance on
York’s road network, and increase average journey speeds. The
magnitude of these network effects are forecast to be similar in 2011 and
2021. Furthermore Phase 2 would incorporate new facilities for
pedestrians and cyclists, and reduce journey length and time for these
users. Foss Bank, to the west of Phase 2, is not an attractive route for
cyclists, so Phase 2 would enhance journey ambience for these users.
Phase 2 would also encourage improvements in bus services by
providing a through route, facilitating greater flexibility in the routes
provided and improved penetration of services into areas of new
development.

The apparent high benefit : cost ratio arising from network delay savings
versus construction costs of P2S would indicate that the earliest possible
completion of Phase 2 would provide the optimum financial benefit to the
Council. This, however, assumes a construction cost estimate based on
a consultant's experience of constructing similar highways over
contaminated sites and the actual extent of contamination/remedial
measures may result in a higher cost than the estimate.



Page 63

20. The following options are, available to the council:

21.

22.

Option 1 - Pursue the developer’s signing of the Agreement requiring
him to construct the remaining southern section of Phase 2 (P2S).
Under this option, the Council is expected to make a contribution
from the Local Transport Plan allocation for enhancing the minor
access road, that would have otherwise been constructed, to the
desired standard for the link road.

If the developer decides not to proceed with the development (and the
Council revokes the Planning Permission) then proceed with Option 2.

Option 2 - When the outcome of negotiations with the developer is
known a further report on the financial implications is submitted to
EMAP for a decision to progress the commissioning of the remaining
stages of the design programme so that P2S can considered for
inclusion in the 2009/10 capital programme.

Corporate Priorities

Completion of Phase 2 would appear to contribute to the following
Corporate Priorities:

Reduce the environmental impact of council activities and encourage,
empower and promote others to do the same. There is considerable
scope for reducing vehicle congestion delay on the overall network
and thereby reducing the associated adverse affects, such as air
pollution.

Increase the use of public and other environmentally friendly modes
of transport. There is considerable scope for encouraging a more
walking, cycling and use of buses at Phase 2 will include new cycle
routes (forming a strategic link in the city’s cycle network) and provide
the opportunity for new bus routes to be introduced.

Improve the economic prosperity of the people of York with a focus
on minimising income differentials. The construction of Phase 2 will
contribute to the opportunities for regenerating the Foss Islands area
of the city..

Improve the health and lifestyles of the people who live in York, in
particular among groups whose levels of health are the poorest.
There is considerable scope for encouraging a more walking, cycling
and use of buses at Phase 2 will include new cycle routes and
provide the opportunity for new bus routes to be introduced.

Local Transport Plan 2006-2011 (LTP2): The scheme would contribute
to several of the aims of the recently submitted LTP2, namely:

To tackle congestion
To improve economic performance in a sustainable manner;
To reduce the levels of actual and perceived safety problems;



23.

24.

Page 64

To enhance opportunities for all community members, including
disadvantaged groups, to play an active part in society;

To improve the health of those who live or work in, or visit, York, and
To reduce the impact of traffic and travel on the environment,
including air quality, noise and the use of non-renewable resources.

Implications

This report has the following implications:

Financial - There are no financial implications for the council at this
stage. Once the outcome of ongoing negotiations with the developer
of the site through which the last section Phase 2 is due to run are
known and the feasibility study described in paragraph 26 has
reported the financial implications will be more certain.

Human Resources (HR) — There are no HR implications for the
council.

Equalities - The potential improvements to the service on the York-
Harrogate-Leeds line would enable people to reach job opportunities
within York and the wider Leeds City Region that would have
otherwise been unreachable due to lack of available and affordable
transport.

Legal — Comments awaited on implications for securing the
developer’s signature on the Section 106 Agreement or land purchase
/ revocation of Planning Permission, if the developer decides not to
develop the site.

Crime and Disorder — There are no legal implications at present.

Information Technology (IT) — there are no IT implications at
present.

Property — The land purchase and revocation of Planning Permission
may have significant financial and legal implications Once the
outcome of ongoing negotiations with the developer of the site,
through which the last section Phase 2 is due to run, are known these
implications will be more certain.

Sustainability — The facilities within this scheme to encourage
greater use of more sustainable forms of travel are welcomed. More
detailed environmental impact analyses will need to be undertaken as
part of the detailed design.

Other — No comments.

Risk Management

In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy the main
risk that has been identified in this report could lead to the inability to
meet the council’s objectives (Strategic).



Page 65

25. Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score for the
recommendation is less than 16 and thus at this point the risks need only
to be monitored as they do not provide a real threat to the achievement
of the objectives of this report.

Recommendations

26. That the Advisory Panel advise the Executive Members to:

Reason:

Note this report (including, Annexes)

Await the outcome of negotiations with the developer and when
they are known, a further report on the financial and legal
implications is submitted to a future EMAP for a decision to be
considered on:

e Pursuing the developer’s signing of the Agreement requiring
him to construct the remaining southern section of Phase 2
(P2S)

e Authorising the commissioning of the remaining stages of
the design programme to enable P2S to be considered for
inclusion in the 2009/10 capital programme.

The modelling undertaken for the short remaining southern
section of James Street Link Road shows that it would enhance
the performance of Phase 1 and relieve congestion on several
roads in the Foss Basin area of the city now and in the future.
The initial financial assessment showed that this should be
constructed as soon as possible to generate the most benefit.
The Council also needs to be clear of the position and that of the
developer regarding the development of the site off Layerthorpe
through which the Link Road is to run, in order for it to reach a
decision as to whether the developer or the council should fund
the construction of the final section of the link road and when it
should be constructed.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
lan Stokes Damon Copperthwaite

Principal Transport Planner Assistant Director of City Strategy

City Strategy

Tel No. 01904 551429

Report Approved | v Date 03/10/08




Page 66

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

Patrick Looker

Finance Manager, Resource & Business Management, City Strategy
Jonathan Carr

Head Of Development Control, Planning & Sustainable Development

Neil Hindhaugh

Head of Property Services, Property Services, Resources

Jacqueline Warren (John Urwin on Jacqueline Warren’s behalf)

Planning & Sustainability Development, Sustainability Officer, City Strategy
Evie Chandler

Equalities Officer, Deputy Chief Executives, Chief Executives

Quentin Baker

Head of Civic, Democratic & Legal Services, Civic, Democratic & Legal Services,
Chief Executives

Wards Affected: All

Heworth

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers
‘Foss Basin Transport Implications, Final Report, 2003 Jacobs

‘James Street Link Road Phase 2 Stage 1 Report - Traffic Forecast Refresh,
September 2008’ - Halcrow Group Limited

Annexes

Annex A - Location Plan
Annex B — Details of consultation with the site developer’s agent



LOCATION PLAN ANNEX A

James Street
Link Road
Phase 2
northern section

James Street
Link Road
Phase 2
southern
section (P2S)

James Street
Link Road
Phase 1

/9 ebed



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



ABSOCIATES

Chartered Town Planning Consultants

Marlk Powell
Associate (Transport Plannin F B _ o
Armdale Hg.lse " 8) gé? 555 CFOW i
Halcrow Group Ltd icj“ Received : Ei?
Otley Road N‘i s M-
Leeds Er——. 11 AUG 2078
LSe 2UL Yes

No o

Flle Ref:

13%

Your ref: 04/01745/FUL
Our ref: y[t808atrans.d]
Date: 8 August 2008
Emait: djohnson@oneill-associates.co.uk
Dear Mark

REDEVELOPMENT OF LAND AT LAYERTHORPE, YORK

Thank you for your letter of 5 August 2008 regarding the above. | should advise you it is not
definite that our client, Tiger Developments, will proceed with residential development on the
site due to the current economic climate. Other development options are currently being
locked at and it is hoped that progress will be made in the coming months,

One issue that may be looked at as part of these investigations is the potential to realign the
relief road along the eastern boundary of the site, to produce a more useable development site;
ie. rather than one split into two by the relief road. This would create a staggered junction on
Layerthorpe. | cannot provide a programme for the development of the site at this stage but
we have a meeting arranged with the Director of City Strategy on 19 August 2008 to discuss
development options and we are hopeful that this will give some real impetus to moving the
project forward,

Yours sincerely

David johnson

Copy John Nesbitt, Tiger Developments
Simon Fox, Tiger Developments
Simon Pollitt, Tiger Developrnents

Lancaster House James Nicolson Link  Clifton Moor York YO30 4GR 01904 692313 www.oneill-associates.co.uk
C'Neill Planning Associates Limited Registered No. 4604201  Director: fanet O'Neilf



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 71 Agenda ltem 6

COUNCIL

Meeting of Executive Members for City Strategy 20 October 2008
and Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

Petition from Residents Requesting the Provision of Formal Cycle
Facilities on Crichton Avenue

Summary

1. This report informs the Advisory Panel of the receipt of a petition from residents
requesting that formal cycling facilities be provided on Crichton Avenue and the
actions which are currently underway to investigate the provision of such
facilities.

Background

2.  Officers were contacted by one of the Clifton Area Police Community Support
Officers a while ago to inform them that a petition was being put together
requesting formal cycle facilities be provided on Crichton Avenue. They were
also informed that the aim was to present the complete petition to Full Council
on the 25™ September. The eight page petition was subsequently submitted to
the aforementioned meeting by ClIr. Helen Douglas on behalf of the local
residents and comprised 162 signatures.

3. The wording of the petition is as follows; “We the undersigned, require the City
of York Council to provide a shared cycle/footpath on the highway at Crichton
Avenue from Burtonstone Lane, on both sides of the carriageway, to the
junction of Crichton Avenue and Wiggington (sic) Road.” A copy of the front
sheet is provided as Annex 1.

4.  Crichton Avenue is currently used by many cyclists as it is located close to two
of York’s largest employment sites, York Hospital and Nestle. It is the only road
crossing of the York to Scarborough railway line between Bootham and the
Wigginton Road Level Crossing and thus carries large quantities of traffic
especially in the peak hours. Cyclists’ biggest complaint about the road relates
to its width and the fact that cyclists get squeezed by traffic as they cross over
the bridge. Many cyclists currently cycle on the footway over the bridge which
in turn intimidates pedestrians.

5. Due to the numerous requests for the provision of formal cycling facilities
received by the council over the past few years a feasibility study was
commissioned in 2005. The study was undertaken by Halcrow Group Limited
and their findings were reported in early 2006. That report identified a number
of issues that were difficult to overcome such as how to re-introduce cyclists
back onto the carriageway at the Burton Stone Lane junction, whether the
Burton Stone Lane / Crichton Avenue junction should be signalised and how an



Page 72

off-road section from Burton Stone Lane to Kingsway North would cross all the
existing driveways and side roads.

Following that report a further review has been commissioned this year to
identify solutions to the issues and this work is currently ongoing. It is expected
that the outcome of this study will be reported to EMAP in Spring 2009. The
section of route covered by the study and that requested by the petitioners are
shown on the plan in Annex 2.

As part of the recent “Cycling City” bid an orbital cycle route concept was
developed which would enable cyclists to travel along either traffic-free or lightly
trafficked routes to transverse the city without necessarily having to go
anywhere near the more heavily-trafficked city centre. This orbital route would
use existing infrastructure where available but would also necessitate the
infilling of gaps at various points along its length. One such gap is the length of
Crichton Avenue which would link any provision on Kingsway North with
Sustrans’ Foss Islands Path. As the orbital route forms a key part of the Cycling
City project this proposal will be given a higher priority than it might have been
given previously.

Corporate Priorities

The scheme, if successful, would contribute to the following Corporate
Priorities:

Increase the use of public and other environmentally friendly modes of
transport.

The scheme would make accessibility by cycle easier and safer, and may
encourage more residents to drive to York Hospital and Nestle.

Improve the economic prosperity of the people of York with a focus on
minimising income differentials

Cycling is one of the cheapest forms of personal travel and switching to this
mode from either private car or bus could potentially save the resident money.

Improve the health and lifestyles of the people who live in York, in particular
among groups whose levels of health are the poorest.

The scheme will encourage more cycling and walking which will have a knock-
on effect for health.

Local Transport Plan (LTP) : The scheme would contribute to several of the
aims of the recently submitted LTP, namely:

« To reduce the need to travel, especially by car, and encourage essential
journeys to be undertaken by more sustainable modes;

« To reduce levels of traffic congestion;
« Toreduce the levels of actual and perceived safety problems;

« To enhance opportunities for all community members, including
disadvantaged groups, to play an active part in society;

« To improve the health of those who live or work in, or visit, York;

« To reduce the impact of traffic and travel on the environment, including air
quality, noise and the use of non-renewable resources;



10.

11.

12.

Page 73

« To provide a transport system that is affordable and achievable in practical
terms, and offers value for money.

Risk Management

In compliance with the Council’s Risk Management Strategy the main risk which
has been identified in this report could lead to the inability to meet business
objectives (Strategic).

Measured in terms of impact and likelihood, the risk score for the
recommendation is less than 16 and thus at this point the risks need only to be
monitored as they do not provide a real threat to the achievement of the
objectives of this report.

Recommendations
That the Advisory Panel advise the Executive Member to:
1) Note the content of this information report.

Reason: To inform members of the work currently underway in relation to
the petition.

2) Request officers to respond to the residents responsible for putting the
petition together.

Reason: To inform them of the ongoing work.

Contact Details

Report Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Andy Vose Damon Copperthwaite
Transport Planner Assistant Director (City Development & Transport)

Transport Planning Unit ~ City Strategy
Tel No. 551608

Report Date 3/10/2008

v
Approved

Wards Affected: Clifton All [ 1

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

None

Annexes

Annex 1 : Front page of the petition

Annex 2 : Plan showing the location of route being investigated



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75

CRICHTON AVENUE CYCLE TRACK PETITION

We, the undersigned, require the City of York Council to provide a shared cycle/footpath

on the highway at Crichton Avenue from Burtonstone Lane, on both sides of the
carriageway, to the junction of Crichton Avenue and Wiggington Road.

SIGNATURE NAME ADDRESS
‘ £ Giwonar | 30 Fieer Jex ok Yossrats
il 1€ se Wiy Gy
M. gcmﬂs» V36 Kunena wasy wordhe-

1 -DeEnca o

WOl Peredinss \A.3€ .

2\ lc:r\sc.sz...nu Ao R4

(% :cmw swy AUE

=

,/f«(“'xl/& 2T &7

Elame WIS

K . Scgfe [0 SteNE AUE
R AR DAY E
A TANC |y (o) Ax-
[Tusson |20 Saville Brove .
- [7 cadqgnd( w?a‘/f‘i
S. Uﬂ%m 33 hkvens AT
B Beam ad RS C - Jote .
EX Wl ST CROM~MGEST
SouvAHER W H'—iuﬁ/{aﬂ RVE
M- CopfER | )0k ~weas A-/e
B. 3. BacctC [0, TEWBYSow fVENUE
£ Sigmaodly” & boohamler. Vo230 IAH
LbBet e e s 8 erdsiMomn Ac Yagoss-.
5 CveNEY o ReaenXivee  Ave
% )agwrw 29, /"or/fc’m;u Hom=S

L. KOG Sorle

ANNEX 1



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 2

Page 77

Drawing No.
H CRICHTON.ECW

17

LT3
.. [

Annex 2 : Crichton Avenue Cycle Route Study

SECTION OF ROUTE
REQUESTED IN PETITION




Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 79 Agenda ltem 7

COUNCIL

Meeting of Executive Members for City 20 October 2008
Strategy and Advisory Panel

Report of the Director of City Strategy

WATER END — PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS FOR CYCLISTS

Summary

This report advises Members about the results of consultation on proposals to
introduce cycle facilities on Water End from the Clifton Green traffic signals to
the junction with Salisbury Road. Members are asked to consider the contents
of the report and approve the recommended option for implementation.

Background

Encouraging more people to cycle has been a long-standing priority for the
Council, and this work has recently been given a huge boost by our successful
bid to become a ‘Cycling City’.

As part of our action plan to address existing gaps in connections and routes,
we are seeking to create an ‘orbital cycle route’ to help people to get around the
city. This will be located in-between the inner and outer ring roads, and should
provide safer and more convenient cycling links to many employment sites,
schools, leisure facilities, healthcare and retail sites.

The proposed cycle improvements for Water End would form an important part
of this orbital route, and would immediately link up with existing cycle facilities
west of the Salisbury Road junction with other cycle routes starting in the Clifton
area. This would improve cycle connections for many people covering a wide
area. The proposed route would also connect with the existing on-road cycle
lanes along Clifton Road and Bootham.

There are a limited number of river crossings in the city, especially north of the
city centre. Providing improved cycle facilities over Clifton Bridge along Water
End has huge potential to encourage more people to cycle. For example, it not
only forms a very important route for commuter journeys, but also for people
travelling to and from school and for accessing leisure facilities. The route also
forms a link between the major retail areas of Acomb and Clifton Moor.

At present, this section of Water End is not very attractive for cyclists to use.
The main problem is the relatively narrow carriageway width (7.3m) which
cyclists have to share with heavy traffic flows. The route is usually congested at
peak periods, and often has fast moving traffic during the off-peak periods. As a
result, many cyclists currently choose to ride on the footways, which causes



10.

Page 80

some conflict with pedestrians. This is particularly apparent when crossing
Clifton Bridge, where the lighting columns at the back of the kerb line effectively
create a narrow footway space, bounded by the bridge parapets. Another
problem is the lack of any facilities to help people to cross Water End to access
the riverside cycle/pedestrian route which passes under Clifton Bridge. Given
the traffic conditions referred to above, this can be a difficult crossing
movement to make whether on foot or on a bicycle. In addition, cyclists often
have difficulty in riding past the queue of vehicles approaching the Clifton
Green traffic signals, particularly at the ‘pinch point’ adjacent to property
number 17 Clifton Green, and regularly resort to riding along the narrow
footway to bypass vehicles in order to reach the stop line. The proposals have
been developed to address these problems.

Proposals

As mentioned earlier, the existing carriageway is only 7.3m wide, which is not
wide enough to accommodate on-road cycle lanes in both directions. The
recommended minimum width of cycle lanes is 1.5m wide, and for roads
carrying HGV and bus traffic we would ideally look to provide traffic lanes of
around 3.0m for each direction of travel. When combined, these give a required
road width of 9.0m. Widening the carriageway by such an amount would not be
feasible due to the huge expense involved, and technical difficulties linked to
the adjacent embankments and restricted width of Clifton Bridge. However,
providing a 1.5m cycle lane on one side of the carriageway is considered a
practical solution, and therefore options for routing cyclists off-road on the
opposite side were explored. Following further feasibility work, Officers
concluded that the best arrangement would be for westbound cyclists to be on-
road, with off-road provision in the eastbound direction. The proposals are
shown in Annex A, and a description of the main elements of the proposals are
explained in more detail below:

For eastbound cyclists, the proposals take advantage of the section on the
northern footway (between Salisbury Road and the Youth Hostel) where
pedestrian movements are very light. Here a conversion of the footway for use
just by cyclists is proposed.

At the Salisbury Road junction, it is proposed to introduce a new Pelican
crossing into the signal phasing across Water End, primarily to enable anyone
who might be affected by the proposed conversion of footway to cycle track in
order to cross and then proceed along the other side of Water End. This will
also provide a new facility for those wishing to access the RSPCA and
Yorkshire Water offices, as well as the riverside, where many local people walk
their dogs.

As part of the bridge refurbishment works, the lighting columns over the bridge,
which are currently situated in the footways close to the carriageway, are to be
relocated behind the parapets. This will ensure that the full width of both paths
will be available for use by cyclists on the northern side, and pedestrians on the
southern side.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Page 81

The converted footway will extend over Clifton Bridge to a proposed Toucan
crossing adjacent to the Youth Hostel. The proposed Toucan crossing is
intended to provide easier and safer access to and from the existing riverside
cycle/pedestrian route which passes under Clifton Bridge. The footway leading
from the Toucan crossing to the Youth Hostel entrance will be widened to
accommodate cyclists and pedestrians in a shared use area.

From the eastern side of the Youth Hostel Entrance to Clifton Green a new
cycle track is proposed. This will mainly be situated along the edge of the verge
adjacent to the carriageway, but the alignment will deviate slightly around the
existing Pelican crossing and the bus stop to reduce potential conflict with
pedestrians.

Cyclists currently face particular difficulties at Clifton Green due to a pinch point
in the road width near house No.17 and queuing traffic at the traffic signals.
Usually, the traffic queuing in the dedicated left turn lane on the approach to the
Clifton Green signals position themselves tight against the nearside kerb,
thereby preventing cyclists from passing on the nearside. As a result, some
resort to riding along the existing footway to get to the junction. Therefore, as
the cycle track approaches Clifton Green, the proposals include an extension to
the kerb line, so that cyclists can safely negotiate the ‘pinch point’ at the corner
(adjacent to property number 17). From that point, a ramped section would
allow cyclists to rejoin the carriageway into a cycle lane leading to the
advanced stop box at the traffic signals. This proposal will require the current
two-lane approach for traffic to be reduced to a single lane (the designated left
turn lane would be removed).

The proposed on-road cycle lane (1.5m wide) for cyclists travelling in a westerly
direction commences just before the junction with the Clifton Green slip-road.
Unfortunately, because of the ‘pinch point’ near No. 17 on Water End, there is
insufficient carriageway space to start the cycle lane any earlier than this.

The westerly on-road cycle lane will extend all the way from Clifton Green to
the Salisbury Road junction. The carriageway will be marked with a 1.5m cycle
lane plus a 2.8m traffic lane running alongside it for westbound movements,
with a 3.0m lane for traffic movements in the opposite direction (cyclists will be
off-road on that side).

At the Salisbury Road traffic signals, there are proposals to provide an off-road
cycle track to give access to a proposed new Toucan crossing over the
Salisbury Road junction mouth, which would replace the existing staggered
Pelican crossing. This new crossing will link the proposed route with the
existing off-road cycle track leading to Boroughbridge Road in a single stage
crossing. For cyclists wanting to stay on-road, a cycle lane between the two
traffic lanes is incorporated, leading to an advanced stop box.

Consultation Feedback

A consultation letter, together with the plan shown in Annex A, was distributed
to local residents, businesses, and other interested parties (e.g. the emergency
services and road user groups). In addition, an article was released to the York



18.

19.

20.

21.

Page 82

Press in order to make the general public aware of the proposed scheme. A
summary of the feedback received is outlined below.

Residents / Businesses

To date, 16 replies have been received. Many of the responses express
general support for the proposals, with some reservations regarding particular
elements. Annex B provides a detailed summary of the points raised along with
Officer comments. However, one main issue has emerged, and this is
discussed below:

Many respondents are concerned that the proposal to remove the existing
dedicated left turn lane for traffic at the Clifton Green signals will worsen traffic
congestion on Water End, which can already be very bad at certain times of
day. Some suggest that the cycle lane could end at, or before, the pinch point
near No. 17, and the two-lane approach could then be retained for traffic.

Officer response

In becoming a Cycling City, the Council has committed to promoting cycling
infrastructure that will in some instances need to take priority over motor traffic.
Cyclists are higher up on the list of user hierarchy than motorists, and the
Council is now seeking to deal with the more difficult parts of the cycle network
where there are gaps in route connectivity. This is not to say that the needs of
motorists should be ignored over cyclists’ needs. However, after analysing the
situation at the Clifton Green traffic signals, Officers consider that the benefits
this part of the route will provide for cyclists is worthy of the disadvantages that
motorists may face from increased congestion. Following Officer concerns
about the potential increases in traffic congestion, junction modelling was
undertaken in order to evaluate the likely effect of the proposals. Modelling
shows that after an initial impact that could see traffic queues extend as far as
the Salisbury Road junction, it is predicted that some traffic will relocate to other
routes. This basically means that after a few weeks of operation, the traffic
queues should return to more normal levels, but realistically, this is likely to be
slightly worse than the current situation. Nevertheless, Officers are hopeful that
some transfer in modal shift will occur from car to bicycle as a result of the
improved cycling infrastructure, coupled with a slight increase in congestion
levels. The main aim of the Council in becoming a Cycling City is to increase
the number of people cycling in the city.

Emergency Services

The Police have expressed concern about the single lane approach to the
Clifton Green traffic signals, and consider that the proposed Toucan crossing
adjacent to the Youth Hostel is not required.

The Fire & Rescue Service wrote to confirm that they have no objections to the
proposals. At the time of writing the report, no response has been received
from the Ambulance Service.



22.

23.

24.

Page 83

Road User Groups

Sustrans responded by saying that they strongly support these proposals, and
ask whether pedestrians walking along Water End on the north side towards
Clifton will be advised to cross to the south side at Salisbury Road, or do we
envisage signing the existing footway as shared use across the bridge?

Officer response

Officers propose that pedestrians will be asked to cross the road. To that end, a
pedestrian sign will be mounted on adjacent guardrail. In addition, Officers do
not intend to designate the existing footway as shared use across the bridge.

The York Cycle Campaign responded by saying that they are generally in
support of the scheme overall, but raise a small number of points:

York Cycle Campaign is generally not in favour of shared pedestrian/cycle
facilities alongside roads, regarding them as a last resort, and less preferable
compared to on-road cycle lanes;

Although large stretches of the proposed off-road path on the northern side of
Water End are marked as ‘cycle track’ and not as ‘shared use’, it is inevitable
that it will be used by pedestrians: there appears to be no room left for a
separate footway and it would be unreasonable to expect a pedestrian to cross
and re-cross Water End simply to avoid the cycle track. However it is accepted
that in this case, the proposed off-road facility is likely to be the only feasible
option but, as pedestrians will use it, the detailed design should fulfill Cycling
England's guidelines for shared-use paths, not exclusive cycle paths;
Confirmation is sought that the cycle track width will be to Cycling England’s
design standards;

The proposals should include a means of joining the cycle track when making a
right turn from Salisbury Road.

Officer response

The inclusion of some shared pedestrian/cycle facilities within the scheme was,
in effect, a last resort given the limited space available. However, the Council
often promotes the use of off-road sections, especially where this may help
children to cycle associated with Safer Routes to School schemes, but also for
the less experienced or less confident cyclists who would prefer to be
separated from the traffic on busy roads. Officers can confirm that the widths
satisfy Cycling England’s requirements (we are currently liaising with one of
Cycling England’s consultants on an advisory basis), and that the proposals do
include a means of joining the cycle track when making the right turn from
Salisbury Road.

Member Views
Ward Members
Councillors Douglas, King, Scott, Alexander, Bowgett and Crisp were asked for

their comments on the proposals. Only Councillor Douglas responded, and
indicated her support for the proposals. Should we receive any further



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Page 84

comments following submission of this report, they will be reported as an
update at the meeting.

Other Members

Councillor Gillies and Potter were also made aware of the proposals and asked
for their comments. At the time of writing this report, Clir Gillies has yet to
respond. ClIr Potter has responded by indicating her support for the proposals.

Options on the Way Forward

There appears to be a general support for the proposals in principle, with some
comments registered on one main contentious element. Therefore, Officers
have formulated the following options for Members to consider:

Option One — implement the proposals (shown in Annex A);

Option Two — make any changes to the proposals that Members consider
necessary;

Option Three — no cycle improvement measures to be implemented.
Analysis of Options

Clearly, Option Three would do nothing to promote cycling, and crucially, this
option would not fulfil the Council’s obligations in relation to being a Cycling
City. This option would also fail to deliver on at least two of the seven aims
outlined for spending Cycling England’s funding, namely to increase total
cycling activity (more people cycling more often), and to address the gaps in
connections and cycle routes.

Officers consider that the proposals represented in Option One appear to be
the best in terms of advancing the aims of the Council as a Cycling City,
tailored to suit the individual requirements for cycling measures along Water
End. The only major area of concern highlighted by the consultation process is
the proposal to introduce a single lane approach for traffic to the Clifton Green
signals. Should this be the favoured option, traffic modelling shows that initially,
traffic congestion will increase on Water End. However, the traffic model also
predicts that this will ease over time as drivers make alternative choices over
their route choice and mode of travel. Officers consider that this element of the
overall scheme is very important to make cycling along Water End more
attractive, which is essential if the aim of encouraging a modal shift from car to
bicycle is to be achieved. Therefore, Officers do not consider that any
amendments to the scheme (Option Two) can be recommended.

Corporate Priorities

Option One appears to be the only option that will deliver uninterrupted cycling
facilities along Water End. These proposals would help meet the Council’s
Corporate Priorities for improving the health and lifestyles of York’s residents.
In particular, it should also encourage local people to walk and cycle.



Page 85

Implications
Financial/Programme

It is expected that the proposals could be delivered within the budget of
£300,000 that was originally allocated within the 08/09 Capital Programme.

Human Resources (HR)

There are no human resources implications.
Equalities

There are no equalities implications.

Legal

There are no legal implications.

Crime and Disorder

There are no crime and disorder implications.
Information Technology (IT)

There are no information technology implications.
Property

There are no property implications.

Risk Management

Risk Category Impact Likelihood Score
Physical Low Possible 5
Financial Low Unlikely
Organisation/Reputation Medium Highly Probable | 15

In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy, the main risks that
have been identified in this report are the potential damage to the Council’s
image and reputation linked to road traffic congestion at the Clifton Green traffic
signals. This is because the proposals may be unpopular with many people,
particularly motorists (Governance). There is, of course, the risk of incurring
higher than expected construction costs (Financial). Measured in terms of
impact and likelihood, the risk scores have all been assessed at less than 16.
This means that at this point the risks need only to be monitored, as they do not
provide a real threat to the achievement of the objectives of this report.



Page 86

Recommendations

38. That the Advisory Panel advise the Executive Member to approve Option One,
to implement the proposals (shown in Annex A).

Reason: Officers consider that these proposals will provide significant
improvements for cyclists on Water End, and contribute to the aims of the
Council as a Cycling City.

Contact Details:

Author Chief Officer Responsible for the report
Jon Pickles Damon Copperthwaite

Senior Engineer Assistant Director of City Strategy
Transport & Safety

Tel No: 3462 Report Approved | . Date 3/10/2008

Specialist Implications Officer(s)

There are no specialist implications.
Wards Affected: Holgate and Clifton Wards an [ ]

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

“Proposed 2008/09 City Strategy Capital Programme” — report to the Meeting of
Executive Members for City Strategy and Advisory Panel on 17 March 2008

“York Cycling City” — report to the Meeting of Executive Members for City Strategy
and Advisory Panel on 8 September 2008

Annexes:

Annex A — Cycle Route Proposals
Annex B — Comments in Response to Consultation



ANNEX A

o D \
AN Guard rail to physically - [ —Amv\
— end footway Retain redundant section L I
e of existing cycle trackas Rﬂxm Mw._uﬂ_ﬂmmwﬂogm«\ : I Off - road cycle track
New pedestrian | Greate new @ seejing \ viewing area e I On - road cycle lane

Existing pedestrian
and cycle routes to

crossing ﬂ&:? cycle track link

[ ] Shareduse path

Tactile paving at
crossing points

Remove existing [
hatching and buildout -

S (74 T — S — = Tactile paving to define
. shared use areas
Existing cycle lane 4/ y S - () Street Lighting
; linking toexisting L & N,/ " Option for cyclists wishing to
, ° Cast Iron Bollards

turn left to come off

| off-road cycle track
— carriageway

Note - areas of cycle track / lane
crossing junction mouths to be
coloured green to highlight the

New Toucan crossing
\_facility linking with

X existing off-road route

Widen existing footway to
form a segregated
pedestrian / cycle path

Re-entry _uo_m: *Q cyclists to

IWOY AdNEsnvs

| toAs9 - \q\m,_ni carriageway cycle lane presence of cyclists to motorists
e , ,
| |
| |
||||||| N | . NN /
— — | Widen existing footway PR
—— — — \ ~ toform shared use path
—— * ob _— — pae — - \w\/ \,,/ \\.\X.W
R - ————— | 7\/\/\/\.
" o~ ( / [ , \\
| 7| Proposed new
,,, , , Toucan crossing
/
\\
vy ,, i ,,, m— M\ 1 B ] T~ ) ,, m\\; | ,
IR . Carriageway levels to be ,,, ,2m<< Kerb ,__:,,m , ”, | 0
| " raised to reduce cross-falls ,,, S . WPLIAY , |
. onadjacent verge areas - extending into T - Remove existing P B
oy ,, ' carriagewayto . bollards and o |~ On-road cycle lane [
—_ / | . continue offroad ~  Cobblesto ' Return cyclists _m%o__:@ P ﬁw |
T : P e e y : i | cycle track mx_wﬁ_sm Increase ._“_.dm . o to road level at m,,, vanced s ,,,O_u Ine box /
““““““ . : : " P kerb line J,moogmu\ <<_&: this point ,

e B Se S : ) P
: ————— V/ \ Shelter

mx_mﬁ_,sc Pelican
crossing point

Single traffic ,
lane approach |
to signals

Cycle lane not
provided here due to

Startofon-road  restricted road width
~cycle lane

\

&)
S

\ By - pass for /
/  cyclists turning left

N O

L /S / ~ / N
T/ - N
~ / / \
< / ~ AN N
/) / /o N\
/ S o, 2N
/ % g N |




Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 89

ANNEX B
COMMENTS IN RESPONSE TO CONSULTATION

Comment 1: What consideration has been given to pedestrian access to
Homestead Park?

Officer response

Pedestrian access to Homestead Park will not change as a result of the
proposals. The footways in close proximity to the entrance will not be affected,
and the Pelican crossing is to be retained. The only work in this area relates
to the surface levels near the existing Pelican crossing, where it is intended to
make the current gradients less steep.

Comment 2: At present the proposals mean that in some areas, pedestrians
and cyclists will be physically separated, which would be unhelpful for
pedestrians accompanying children on bicycles. N.B: this is not a problem in
places where the pedestrian path runs alongside the cycle path, e.g. by the
river.

Officer response

Experience shows that the vast majority of pedestrians and cyclists walk and
cycle independently from one another. Apart from routes that are widely used
for leisure (such as the riverside route) it is rare for pedestrians and cyclists to
be together in the same group. The cycle lane has been kept as close to the
road as possible to make sure that the route for cyclists is as direct as
possible, without too much deviation from the carriageway. This also
minimises any potential conflict with pedestrians. In positioning the cycle track
directly adjacent to the carriageway, any egress by motor traffic from side
roads or private entrances can be managed more safely.

Comment 3: The proposal to remove the existing dedicated left turn lane for
traffic at the Clifton Green signals is bound to worsen traffic congestion at that
point, which is already very bad at certain times of day. At that point cyclists
should return to the road or walk that stretch. Alternatively, the cycle lane
could end at or before the corner, and the two-lane approach could then be
retained for traffic.

Officer response

Following Officer concerns about the potential increases in traffic congestion,
junction modelling was undertaken in order to evaluate the likely effect of the
proposals. Modelling shows that after an initial impact that could see traffic
queues extend as far as the Salisbury Road junction, it is predicted that some
traffic will relocate to other routes. This basically means that after a few weeks
of operation, the traffic queues should return to more normal levels, but
realistically, this is likely to be slightly worse than the current situation.
Nevertheless, Officers are hopeful that some transfer in modal shift will occur
from car to bicycle as a result of the improved cycling infrastructure, coupled
with a slight increase in congestion levels. After all, the main aim of the
Council in becoming a Cycling City is to increase the number of people



Page 90

cycling in the city. Since becoming a Cycling City, the Council has committed
to promoting cycling infrastructure that will in some instances need to take
priority over motor traffic. Cyclists are higher up on the list of user hierarchy
than motorists, and the Council is now seeking to deal with the more difficult
parts of the cycle network where there are gaps in route connectivity. This is
not to say that the needs of motorists should be ignored over cyclists’ needs.
However, after analysing the situation at the Clifton Green traffic signals,
Officers consider that the benefits this part of the route will provide for cyclists
is worthy of the disadvantages that motorists may face from increased
congestion.

Comment 4: The main problem for cyclists on this route is the danger
in negotiating the Water End / Shipton Road traffic signals. Most cyclists
effectively go straight over the junction to go onto Water Lane, or turn right
into Bootham. Therefore, instead of using the north side of Water End, the
cycle track should go along the south side (after crossing the bridge). A two-
way cycle track should then be introduced alongside Clifton Green on the
current one-way road, leading to the Old Grey Mare pub. This proposal would
also remove the need to do away with the existing dedicated left turn lane
from Water End into Shipton Road, a move that would have a significant
adverse effect on the flow of traffic along Water End. The proposal also
means that cyclists would have the added danger of traffic turning left across
the end of the cycle route at the lights from the one lane, rather than cyclists
knowing (as they do now) that only traffic in the left hand lane is turning left.

Officer response

Officers have no significant concerns regarding cyclist safety at this junction
as it operates at the present time, nor as a result of the proposed changes.
Nevertheless, the suggestions made would not be practical, as there is not
enough space to provide a dedicated two-way cycle facility on this side of the
road. A route along the one-way section of road alongside Clifton village
green was investigated as part of the feasibility study, but this was not
considered to be a workable option. In addition, the route suggested is not
direct, and is therefore not likely to be an attractive route for potential users,
nor is it considered to be a safer alternative to the proposed routing.

There will inevitably be some negative effect upon the traffic flows through the
signals due to increased queuing on Water End. Please refer to the Officer
response provided for Comment 3 above.

Comment 5: The current difficulties in exiting Greencliffe Drive, particularly
when turning right into Water End, would be exacerbated, given the inevitable
increase in traffic congestion that would follow the removal of the dedicated
left turn lane on the approach to the Clifton Green signals. Exiting Greencliffe
Drive is also made more difficult because of the cyclists that currently use the
southern footpath to ride into the city, in order to avoid the traffic queuing for
the signals at Clifton Green.



Page 91

Officer response

Officers consider that regardless of whether the extent of queuing traffic on
Water End from the signals at Clifton Green increases, the difficulties
experienced would not change significantly. However, the provision of
attractive cycling facilities to enhance the approach to the traffic signals
should mean that the likelihood of cyclists riding on the footway would be
significantly reduced.

Comment 6: The area surrounding Clifton Green is a conservation area, and
the proposals will need to take account of that fact, for example, used stone
kerbs and paving stones may need to be used, and new signing provision
should be kept to a minimum. There is also some concern regarding the
potential loss of the existing cast iron bollards and cobbled area opposite
property number 17 Clifton Green, in relation to the proposed kerb build-out to
provide a continuation of the off-road cycle track.

Officer response

There is always a degree of sensitivity required by Officers in providing new
infrastructure within conservation areas. All of these considerations, for
example, where we need to relocate existing lighting columns, provide paving
materials and erect new signs, will all be determined at the detailed design
stage, and everything will be done to ensure that the measures blend as
seamlessly as possible with the surrounding area.

Comment 7: Money that is spent on this scheme would be better used for
upgrading the outer ring road, so that traffic levels in the city can be reduced.

Officer response

The Council promotes sustainable travel such as walking, cycling or using
public transport in an effort to reduce traffic congestion, improve air quality
and enhance people’s fithess levels. In promoting cycling, the Council hopes
to develop its current cycling infrastructure and encourage more people to
cycle.

Comment 8: As part of the scheme, the vehicular entrance to the John Burrill
Homes should be improved to ease the movement of traffic in and out of the
site.

Officer response

This is a relatively small enhancement, given the scope of the scheme. As the
off-road cycle track is proposed to pass this entrance directly adjacent to the
kerb line, there should be no problem in making the suggested improvement.

Comment 9: The large, overgrown hedgerow bounding the properties on the
north side of Clifton Green should be cut back to maximise the available
footway space.



Page 92

Officer response
Officers are intending to arrange for the hedgerow to be cut back as part of
the proposals.

Comment 10: The residents at property numbers 36 and 38 Water End
currently experience difficulties in emerging from their driveways, particularly
when turning right into Water End, due to traffic queuing back from the Clifton
Green traffic signals. This can often be made more difficult because these
property’s exit is directly adjacent to the existing Pelican crossing. As a result
of the proposals, the residents consider that the current difficulties would be
exacerbated, given the inevitable increase in traffic congestion that would
follow the removal of the dedicated left turn lane on the approach to the
Clifton Green signals. The residents also ask whether the proposed cycle
track that runs past the Pelican crossing would be signalised.

Officer response

Officers consider that regardless of whether the extent of queuing traffic on
Water End from the signals at Clifton Green increases, the difficulties
experienced would not change significantly. However, Officers consider that it
would be impractical for off-road cyclists to be expected to stop every time the
Pelican crossing was used, and this would not be considered attractive for
cyclists to use. Nevertheless, the cycle track has been diverted around the
back of the tactile crossing area where people wait to cross the road.

Comment 11: The existing path adjacent to the John Burrill Homes could be
converted for use as a cut-through for cyclists between Water end and
Shipton Road, thereby avoiding the Clifton Green junction.

Officer response

Currently, this pedestrian path is extremely overgrown, which suggests that it
is not well used. There is no lighting provision along its length, and there is a
particularly narrow section in the middle, which is not suited to shared use.
Officers are not convinced about the benefits of such a conversion, and
consider that the likely cost of upgrading this path to the required standards
would not represent good value for money.

Comment 12: People should be encouraged to use the riverside route to
cycle into the city centre.

Officer response

The proposed scheme will make it much easier to transfer from the existing
riverside route, given that a Toucan crossing facility is proposed near to the
top of the slip road adjacent to Clifton Bridge.

Comment 13: The proposed Toucan crossing opposite the Youth Hostel on
Water End is located too close to the existing Pelican crossing.

Officer response
The proposed Toucan crossing would be around 150m away from the existing
Pelican crossing. This is sufficiently far apart to overcome any safety



Page 93

concerns over drivers possibly confusing one set of signals with another set
slightly further ahead. At the feasibility design stage consideration was given
to combining the two crossings, but they are serving two distinct desire lines.
The Pelican is particularly useful for accessing Homestead Park, and crossing
to and from nearby bus stops. The proposed Toucan will be most useful for
accessing the riverside cycle / pedestrian path, and many users are likely to
come from the Youth Hostel. Therefore a single crossing, wherever it was
positioned, is unlikely to be attractive for many potential users and would
probably result in a lot of crossing activity away from the facility provided.



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	
	2 Minutes
	4 Blossom Street Multi Modal Study - Feasibility
	Blossom EMAP report Annex A
	Blossom EMAP report Annex B
	Blossom EMAP report Annex C
	Blossom EMAP report Annex D
	Blossom EMAP report Annex E

	5 James Street Link Road Phase 2 - Stage 1 Traffic Forecast Refresh
	James 2 EMAP Annex
	James Street Annex B

	6 Petition received from Residents Requesting the Provision of Formal Cycle Facilities on Crichton Avenue
	20_10_08 Crichton Avenue Cycle Facility Petition Annex 1
	20_10_08 Crichton Avenue Cycle Facility Petition Annex 2

	7 Water End - Proposed Improvements for Cyclists
	Water End - Annex A 201008
	ANNEX B - Water End EMAP Report - 20-10-08


